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Chief Executive Officer’s Report
A7 0 48 R A

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Crown International Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), I am pleased to present
the final results of the Company and the Group for the financial year
ended 31 March 2017 (“Year 2017” or the “Year”). I was redesignated as
chief executive officer of the Company (the “CEO”) on 7 October 2016
and continued to be an executive director of the Company (the “Executive

Director”).

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of property investment,
hotel operation and financial advisory service in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). During the Year, the Group continued its business
strategy of further expanding its hotel operation portfolio and polishing up
its property investments, and also launched the financial advisory service
business in order to foster more high value-added businesses, diversify
its operational risks, introduce new sources of income and become less

dependent on property investment and hotel operation.

The newly-added financial advisory service business marked a successful
start during the Year. The Group expanded into the new line of financial
advisory service business by establishing a wholly-owned subsidiary, namely
BEEEEMEMRAF (EEEE”), in the PRC. BE & E engages
in the provision of asset and wealth management and financial advisory
services, as well as advisory and matching service with financial institutions
targeting property developers and other sectors in need of debt financing.
This business delivered outstanding results and offered a new income stream
for the Group, generating revenue of approximately HK$8.7 million, which
accounted for 72.1% of the total revenue of the Group, with a profit of
approximately HK$4.6 million during the Year. The management will
allocate more resources to the financial advisory service segment in the
future with the aim of creating another significant profit stream for the

Group in the coming year.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report (Continued)

Looking forward, the Group will actively manage and enlarge its asset mix
so as to be prepared for any new opportunities. It will continue to look for
potential investment projects in second— and third-tier cities in the PRC
while refining its existing assets, including renovating investment properties
already held by the Group so they could generate a higher income. On 7
June 2017, the Group entered into a lease over a building in Jinggangshan
City in Jiangxi Province with a local lessee, who shall renovate the building
and operate a hotel business in the building for 10 years. Costs of the
renovation shall be initially borne by the lessee, and reimbursed by the
Group over the life of the lease. The management considered this kind of
arrangement brought benefit to the Company and its shareholders (the
“Shareholders”) in the form of stable rental income plus deferred payment

of substantial renovation costs.

Through the concerted efforts of its management and work team, the Group
will continue to improve its profitability, asset mix and profit model, and
thus lay a stronger groundwork for future development. Notwithstanding its
rapid business expansion, the Group has laid a solid foundation for its long-
term development by adhering to prudent and sound governance principles,
emphasising risk management and ensuring diversified domestic and
overseas financing channels and stable financial resources. The Group will
carry on steady development strategies and take measures at suitable time
to adjust these strategies, realise sustainable growth and achieve continual

increase in Shareholders’ value.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to extend our
utmost gratitude to our valued clients, Shareholders and business associates
for their continued support for and confidence in the Group. I also wish to
express our sincere appreciation to our management and employees for their

positive efforts over the past years.

YEUNG Man, Simon
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 June 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B M o3 B

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the business of hotel operations,

property investments and financial advisory services in the PRC.

Riding on its successful turnaround from loss to profit since the financial
year ended 31 March 2015, for Year 2017, the Group continued its business
strategy of further expanding its portfolio in the hotel operations, as well as
exploring new opportunities in other sectors considered by the management
of the Company (the “Management”) to be capable of diversifying
operational risks of the Group and/or introducing new sources of income
less dependent on the conditions pertaining to the hotel operations and

property investments sectors.

In the course of the Group’s exploration in different geographic and business
sectors, the Group identified a number of areas of potential growth. One of
these was cities in the PRC experiencing rapid economic and/or population
growth, particularly those benefiting from governmental policies and/or
plans of economic and/or tourist industry development. The Management
considered such factors tend to facilitate growth of sectors reliant on
increased population and capital flows, such as office rental and commercial

property development, the hotel operations, and the financial service sector.

In an attempt to capture such opportunities and bring stable, long term
income for the benefit of the Group and its sharcholders, the Group on
13 September 2016 entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “SP
Agreement”) in relation to the acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of 100%
equity interest in Jumbo China Investment Group Limited, which in
turn owned a property project with development potential in Weihai, the
PRC (the “Weihai Project”), for a consideration of HK$500 million. The
Acquisition, if completed, would offer the Group with access to a high-end
development of three high rise hotel buildings with a total of approximately
195,104 square metres of gross floor area, or over 1,600 hotel suites and 360
carparking spaces. Further information regarding this potential acquisition
was published in the Company’s announcement dated 13 September 2016

(the “Announcement”).

Apart from identifying expansion opportunities, the Management also
regularly reviewed its portfolio of existing assets and sought to utilise the
same efficiently in line with the business strategy of the Company. This
included renovating old buildings and premises already owned by the Group

so they could generate a higher income.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

To diversify its sources of income, the Management also developed
the Group’s presence in the corporate finance sector in certain rapidly
developing provinces of the PRC, by consulting and matching property
developers and other businesses in need of debt financing on one hand and

financial institutions on the other.

On the other hand, the Management had been conscious of the importance
of safeguarding the Group’s interest by thorough due diligence on, among
other things, the business, legal, financial and regulatory aspects of each
investment opportunity introduced to the Group from time to time, as
well as trying for the best commercial terms achievable under arm’s length
negotiations. Equally important in the eyes of the Management was to
regularly review the suitability of potential investment opportunities, as the

risks and prospects could change from time to time.

As a result of the Management’s policy of conservative evaluation and
ongoing monitor of the Group’s intended investments, from time to time
the Management would consider changes in circumstances rendered the
pursuit of certain proposed acquisitions no longer in the best interests
of the Group and its Shareholders, or required additional conditions
and/or safeguards to be fulfilled before the Group was comfortable with
proceeding to completion. Such instances were from time to time published
in various announcements by the Company during Year 2017 to ensure the
Sharcholders were updated on the latest development of the Group and its

businesses.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Save as any adverse change to the hotel operations and property investment
environment worldwide and the political risks exposed to any investment in
Hong Kong and the Greater China area which together would be regarded as
principal risks, other risk issues had been evaluated by the Company as set

out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During Year 2017, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with any relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the

Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B i M g A (4D

Relationship with key stakeholders

The Group believes that employees are important assets and provides
competitive remuneration packages to attract and retain employees. The
Management regularly reviews the Group’s remuneration to its employees
to ensure that it is up to prevailing market standard. The Group values
mutually beneficial long standing relationships with its suppliers and
customers. The Group aims at delivering high quality services and products

to its customers and developing on mutual trust among its suppliers.

Update on a disclosable transaction

As disclosed in the “Business Review” section above and the Announcement,
on 13 September 2016 Crown International Investment Corp. (the
“Purchaser”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
purchaser and Good Wealth Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”) as vendor

entered into the SP Agreement.

As disclosed in the Announcement, completion of the Acquisition was
conditional upon fulfilment and/or waiver of a number of conditions under
the SP Agreement before 13 December 2016 (the “Long Stop Date”). As
additional time is required for the fulfilment of the aforesaid conditions, the
Purchaser and the Vendor have, by entering into supplemental agreements
dated 13 December 2016, 13 March 2017, 13 April 2017 and 30 June 2017
respectively, agreed to extend the Long Stop Date to 31 August 2017 (or
such later date as the parties may agree in writing). For further information
on the aforesaid supplemental agreements, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 13 December 2016, 13 March 2017, 13 April 2017
and 30 June 2017.

Events after the reporting period

On 7 June 2017, the Group as lessor entered into a lease over a building
in Jinggangshan City in the Jiangxi Province, with a local lessee who shall
renovate the building and operate a hotel business in the building for 10
years. Costs of the renovation shall be initially borne by the lessee, and
reimbursed by the Group over the life of the lease. The Management
considered this kind of arrangement brought benefit to the Company and its
Sharcholders, in the form of stable rental income plus deferred payment of

substantial renovation costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenues

The Group’s revenue for Year 2017 increased by 242.2% to approximately
HK$12.0 million (Year 2016: approximately HK$3.5 million), the increase
was mainly attributable to increased revenue generated from the newly

added financial advisory service segment.

Revenue from the new financial advisory service segment generated by the
Group during Year 2017 was approximately HK$8.7 million, contributing
to 72.1% of the Group’s total revenue (Year 2016: N/A).

For Year 2017, the total revenue from property leasing amounted to
approximately HK$3.4 million as compared to that of approximately
HK$3.5 million for Year 2016. Consistent with last year, the revenue from
property leasing was solely contributed by the commercial building located

in Yingkou, Liaoning Province, the PRC.

Fair value gains on investment properties

For Year 2017, the total revaluation gain of our investment properties
portfolio amounted to approximately HK$160.0 million (Year 2016:
approximately HK$191.3 million). The revaluation of our investment
properties was undertaken by an independent property valuer. The Mainland
China portfolio had a revaluation gain of approximately HK$160.0 million
(Year 2016: approximately HK$191.3 million) mainly due to a higher
valuation of the investment property located in Zhongshan city, Guangdong
Province, the PRC. As at 31 March 2017, the value of the investment
properties of the Mainland China portfolio amounted to approximately

HK$1,881.6 million (31 March 2016: approximately HK$1,828.9 million).

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses amounted to approximately HK$30.0 million
for Year 2017, representing decrease of approximately HK$14.3 million
or 32.2% as compared to that of approximately HK$44.3 million for Year
2016. The decrease in other operating expenses was mainly attributable to

the decrease of exchange loss amounting to approximately HK$17.6 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B i M g A (4D

Finance expenses

Finance expenses amounted to approximately HK$7.9 million for Year
2017, representing decrease of approximately HK$23.6 million or
approximately 74.9% as compared to that of approximately HK$31.5
million for Year 2016. The decrease of finance expenses was solely
attributable to the decrease in imputed interest expenses amounting to

approximately HK$23.6 million.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

For Year 2017, the Group recorded a net profit attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$81.2 million (Year 2016: net profit of
approximately HK$172.3 million). Total comprehensive income attributable
to owners of the Company was approximately HK$1.9 million (Year 2016:

total comprehensive income of approximately HK$109.7 million).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position with a high
degree of flexibility to meet its capital commitments. It also established
multiple channels to raise debt finance in order to seize investment

opportunities and/or cushion itself against unforeseeable circumstances.

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cash

flows and the bank balances.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$85.3 million as compared to the bank balances and cash
of approximately HK$74.6 million as at 31 March 2016.

The Group had net current assets amounting to approximately HK$64.6
million as at 31 March 2017, against approximately HK$96.8 million as at
31 March 2016. The Group’s current ratio (i.e. current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 3.0 as at 31 March 2017 as compared

with approximately 4.5 as at 31 March 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s net debt gearing ratio (i.e. net debt
divided by the sum of equity and net debt) was at a healthy level of
approximately 36.0% (31 March 2016: approximately 35.7%). Net debt
comprises total liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity
comprises owners’ equity as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure of the Group for Year 2017 included expenditure on
fixed assets and investment properties of approximately HK$0.3 million
(Year 2016: approximately HK$3.3 million) and approximately HK$7.8
million (Year 2016: approximately HK$50.8 million) respectively.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2017,

(a) the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities or

guarantees (31 March 2016: Nil); and

(b) the Group had operating lease commitments of approximately HK$6.2
million (31 March 2016: approximately HK$12.4 million).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 March 2017 (31
March 2016: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

No major acquisition or disposal was undertaken by the Group during Year

2017 (Year 2016: Nil).

As at 31 March 2017, the Group did not hold any significant investments
(31 March 2016: Nil).

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a total of 33 employees (31 March
2016: 35 employees), including Executive Directors. The remuneration
and staff cost for Year 2017 were approximately HK$13.6 million (Year
2016: approximately HK$8.7 million). The Group’s remuneration policy
and packages for the Executive Directors and senior management are
determined by the remuneration, quality and nomination committee of
the Company (the “RQNC”) while those for other employees are reviewed
and approved by the CEO. The Group remunerates its employees based on
industry practice and the performance of each individual. The Group also
offers discretionary bonuses, medical insurance and defined contribution
retirement plans, and provides a share option scheme for its employees and

Executive Directors.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Attributable to the successful acquisition of a commercial and residential
complex in Zhongshan, the PRC (the “Zhongshan Project”) in year
2015, the Group has benefited from the impressive price hike in the
property market in Zhongshan. The Zhongshan Project, which is owned
by the Group, has recorded an accumulative increase in market value of
approximately RMB300 million since its acquisition. The success of the
Zhongshan Project speaks volumes for the Group’s operating strategy and
philosophy all along. The Management believes that by actively seeking
property projects with the potential of creating value for the Company,
the Group’s income sources will be broadened and the Group’s property
investment portfolio will be diversified. As such, the Group will actively
look for property projects (including, amongst others, residential,
commercial and hotel projects) which are comparable to the Zhongshan
Project in second- and third-tier cities in the PRC so as to exploit their

potential value.

Under the above operating strategy and philosophy, the Group identified
the Weihai Project during Year 2017. If the Acquisition materialises, the
Group plans to develop the Weihai Project into a high-end hotel project,
comprising three multi-storey hotel complexes to be developed on the land,
and the development project is expected to have an aggregate gross floor
area of approximately 195,014 square metres upon completion. The Weihai
Project is expected to provide over 1,600 hotel suites and 360 parking spaces
upon completion. Situated in the easternmost part of Shandong Province of
China, the prefecture-level city of Weihai is a major seaport, receiving more
than 35 million tourists yearly from all over the world. It was one of the
cities featured in Letter No. 1 (2011) of the PRC State Council titled “The
Blue Shandong Peninsula Economic Zone Development Plan” * ( Ll 52 5
B AR I B JR LA ), which was a development plan for the peninsula
of the Shandong province with a theme of marine economy promulgated by
the PRC State Council in year 2011. The Management is of the view that
the tourism industry in Weihai has had a rapid growth in recent years, and

such rapid growth would also benefit the hotel industry there.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B i M g A (4D

Looking forward, the Group will continue its strategy which emphasises
business diversification and high value-added operations, further promote
business restructuring and improve its business and financial performance
by implementing prudent financial management and giving priority to
Shareholders’ interest. As stated in the Management’s future outlook in the
Year 2016, several new business models, such as asset management, internet-
plus property operation as well as restructuring and reselling property
projects, were being scrutinised. Some of the goals set in Year 2016 were
realised during Year 2017 as the Group expanded into the new line of
financial service business by establishing a wholly-owned subsidiary, namely
5l B & E, in the PRC. H'HE K& engages in the provision of asset and
wealth management and finance advisory services, as well as advisory and
matching service with financial institutions targeting property developers
and other sectors in need of debt financing. The new business segment
has offered a new income stream for the Group, and generated revenue of
approximately HK$8.7 million, which accounted for 72.1% of the total
revenue of the Group, during Year 2017. The success of 5 & & has
driven the Group to make an effort to enhance its capacity of offering
integrated financial services. With the Group’s solid strength and extensive
network in both the PRC and Hong Kong, as well as the pool of talent of
the subsidiary who are experienced in the operation of financial markets, the
newly-established segment of financial services will likely be an important

drive for growth in the Group’s future business development.

The Group has laid a solid foundation for its long-term development by
adhering to prudent and sound governance principles, emphasising risk
management and ensuring asset quality and stable financial resources.
Building on its effective risk control, the Group is also carefully planning
for its future, actively expanding its operation and striving for new business
opportunities. Measures will be taken by the Group at suitable time to
adjust its development strategies, realise sustainable growth and achieve

continual increase in Shareholders’ value.
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Executive Directors

Mr. MENG Jin Long (“Mr. Meng”), Chairman of the Board, Chairman
of the Executive Committee and Member of the RQNC

Aged 32, Mr. Meng was appointed as a non-executive Director of the
Company (a “Non-executive Director’) on 27 May 2014. He was re-
designated as an Executive Director on 19 September 2014 and is a member
of each of the executive committee of the Company (the “Executive
Committee”) and the RQNC. Mr. Meng was further appointed as the
Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and the chairman of the Executive
Committee on 31 March 2015. He was the CEO during the period from 31
March 2015 to 6 October 2016. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business

Administration from Jing Qiao University in China.

Mr. Meng joined the Crown Group in May 2012. Before joining the
Crown Group, he was a sales manager at a real estate investment company
in Beijing. Mr. Meng assisted in land and property development, shopping
mall leasing and management and managed the sale and lease of several real

estate projects.

Mr. LIU Hong Shen (“Mr. Liu”), Vice Chairman of the Board and
Member of the Executive Committee

Aged 57, Mr. Liu was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 27 May
2014 and also appointed as the vice Chairman of the Board on 2 July 2014.
He was re-designated as an Executive Director on 1 November 2015 and is
a member of the Executive Committee. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in

Chinese Literature from Yunnan University in China.

As an entrepreneur, Mr. Liu has many years of experience in commerce,
especially in real estate development in both residential and commercial
properties. He and his business partners have invested in and developed both

residential and commercial properties.

Directors’ Biographies
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Directors’ Biographies (Continued)

EHMEN (H

Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon (“Mr. Yeung”), CEO, Company Secretary and
Member of the Executive Committee

Aged 45, Mr. Yeung was appointed as an Executive Director and the chief
financial officer on 18 August 2015, and is also a member of the Executive
Committee. He was re-designed as CEO on 7 October 2016 and appointed
as company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) on 18
March 2017. He graduated from the University of Georgia, the United
States of America with a bachelor’s degree in Accounting and a bachelor’s

degree in Finance and Banking.

Mr. Yeung joined the Group in May 2015 as the group vice president to
business development, corporate finance, financial management and control.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Yeung has over 18 years of experience in corporate finance
and financial management and control and has considerable experience in
initial public offering, reverse takeover, financial management, corporate
finance and auditing. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Yeung held senior
financial management positions in several Hong Kong Main Board listed

companies and a PRC private enterprise.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LONG Tao (“Mr. Long”), Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the RQNC

Aged 64, Mr. Long was appointed as an independent Non-executive
Director of the Company (an “Independent Non-executive Director”) on
27 May 2014 and is the chairman of the audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) and a member of the RQNC. He graduated from
Research Institute for Fiscal Science, the Ministry of Finance, majoring in

accounting. He holds a master’s degree in Economics.
g g
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Directors’ Biographies (Continued)

Mr. Long is currently the chairman of Beijing Investment Consultants
Inc., an independent non-executive director of each of Qingling Motors
Co. Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock
code: 1122), UBS SDIC Fund Management Company Limited, Beijing
Whoswho Culture and Media Co., Ltd., Beijing Wangfujing Department
Store (Group) Co., Ltd.* (b ERHEE (L) BRBAERAF), a
company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600859) and Aimer Co., Led.* (ZZERM AR AH ) . In the past
three years, Mr. Long has been an independent non-executive director of
Beijing North Star Company Limited, a company whose shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 588), until retired on 28
May 2015.

He has extensive knowledge and experience in corporate finance,
accounting, audit, asset appraisal, enterprise restructuring and listing. Mr.
Long had served at the Accountancy Division of Central University of
Finance and Economics, and the New York office of KPMG Peat Marwick.
He had acted as a member of the Securities Issue and Approval Committee
of the China Securities Regulatory Commission and a member of the

Chinese Accounting Expert Panel for China-Hong Kong Securities Team.

Mr. REN Guo Hua (“Mr. Ren”), Chairman of the RQNC and Member of
the Audit Committee

Aged 59, Mr. Ren was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
on 27 May 2014 and is the chairman of the RQNC and a member of the
Audit Committee. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in English and American

literature from East China Normal University.

*  For identification purpose only

EHMEN (F)

A BUEIL R B H R AR AR ERR -
BB B VL R A PR ) (— R4 R A
WA G A R (TH ) F4R Ei
ZAT B RE  1122) - BRI
P BR 23 W] ~ oAb 44 N SCAR AR TR 4 A BR 4
oAb ERMIEE & () B A R AR
(— MR ElE 5 50 L 2 AW
JBE A AR 9% £ 600859) I B HEME A BR A Fl 2
WL IEAT T o R M =4 B AR AR
b BCAC R B S A R A ) (— BB A 0 B
R ER BT A B RE : 588) X
VIHERGERE - HEZ-HELA TN
H B2 1k o

R A SR - fat - At B RN 3k
AR K T 5 T A A A o B S
He Se ARAT IR v e B AR KBt R S IS
At 2 AL SR o A 0 AT v R 2 B A
HEZROZBARTEMLZHGLZR PR
B wH S AL v B o T P RO o

e A (TR - B RE LA
ZHEERAEMZTHARER

SO ERAER ZF-NELA Z+EH#E
ZAERBILIERATES R FHW - KE R
REZRGER -ULRFELEZREGRE -
15 2 SRR A5 K B2 0 [ % S B S B R - B

fir o

< T

EERKEEFR QA 17
2016/2017 F R



Directors’ Biographies (Continued)

EHMEN (H

Mr. Ren is currently the senior advisor of StormHarbour Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited. He has many years of experience in financial investment
products. Mr. Ren served in various global financial institutions and
has many years of experience in international banking and investment
market. He was a managing director of Greater China Origination in
StormHarbour Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and the general manager of
Sinolink Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. Before that, Mr. Ren was a managing
director and head of capital markets of China region in Standard Chartered
Bank Hong Kong and had made valuable contributions to the Debt and
Fixed Income business for the bank. In his earlier career, he also served
in Commonwealth Bank of Australia Hong Kong, Fleet National Bank
Shanghai Representative Office, True Stand Investments Limited (Hong
Kong), Bear Stearns and Bank of China.

Mr. CHEN Fang (“Mr. Chen”), Member of the Audit Committee and
Member of the RQNC

Aged 57, Mr. Chen was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 27 May 2014 and is a member of each of the Audit Committee
and the RQNC. He obtained a graduate degree in Technical Economy from
Harbin Institute of Technology in China.

Mr. Chen is currently the president of Beijing GZT Network Technology
Inc. He has many years of experience in corporate governance as well as
enterprise development and restructuring. Mr. Chen has also established
a valuable network in the business communities. He was the Dean of
the Institute of IT and Social Development Research of the Chongging

Technology and Business University.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

The Board presents this corporate governance report for inclusion in the
Company’s annual report for the Year and up to the date of this annual

report.

While focusing on its business development with full force, the Company
places great effort in upholding its corporate governance standards as we
believe good corporate governance is an important component in striving for

the highest returns to the Shareholders.

The Company’s principles of corporate governance emphasize on a quality
Board, sound internal controls, independence, transparency of information
and accountability to all stakeholders. Both the Board and the Management
are committed to continuously improving corporate governance practices

and an ethical corporate culture as the intrinsic value of the Company.

The Company is maintaining a high standard of corporate governance with
a view to enhancing the management of the Company as well as preserving
the interest of its Sharcholders as a whole. The Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) and Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

(the “Listing Rules”), save for the following deviation:

S Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive should be separate and should not be

performed by the same individual.

The roles of both the Chairman and CEO were performed by Mr. MENG
Jin Long for reasons disclosed in the Company’s interim report 2016/2017.
In order to satisfy the requirement under code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code, Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon, an Executive Director and the then chief
financial officer, was re-designated as the CEO with effect from 7 October
2016 and Mr. MENG Jin Long ceased to act as the CEO from the same date

but remains as the Chairman.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of six Directors, being three Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The list of
Directors is set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors” of this
annual report. The Company has also maintained on its website and on
the Stock Exchange’s website an updated list of the Directors identifying
their role and function and whether they are Independent Non-executive

Directors.

The Board is committed to maintaining a balanced composition in terms
of its diversity of experience, expertise and independence. The Directors’
biographical information is set out in the section headed “Directors’

Biographies” on pages 15 to 18 of this annual report.

Each Director gives sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
All Directors are required to disclose to the Company at the time of their
appointment and annually the number and the nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant commitments with

an indication of the time involved.

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Biographies”
of this annual report, the Board members do not have any other financial,

business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, the Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The purpose of the code provision is to get
the Directors involved in the Board with an awareness of contribution
thereto. Directors are continually updated on the latest development of the
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practice. During the Year, all
Directors, namely Mr. MENG Jin Long, Mr. LIU Hong Shen, Mr. YEUNG
Man, Simon, Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. REN Guo Hua and Mr. CHEN Fang,
have participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by ways of reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or
to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. All Directors have been required

to provide the Company their records of training received for the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted the board diversity policy on 4 September 2013
which sets out the approaches to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. Further, the Company seces
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. All the Directors’ appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against the objective criteria, having due

regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Currently, the Board comprises six members coming from various
professional backgrounds including property development, accounting and
corporate governance, etc. The Board is of the view that the current Board
has provided a good balance of skills and experience to the Company and

will continue to review its composition from time to time.

The board diversity policy is posted on the website of the Company.

Directors’ Nomination and Appointment

Since April 2006, the Company has adopted the “Procedures on Directors’
Nomination, Appointment and Re-appointment” which sets out the
procedures, processes and criteria to select and recommend candidates for

directorship.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”), the Board is empowered to appoint a Director to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Shareholders (being two or
more Shareholders together holding not less than ten per cent. of the entire
issued shares of the Company) are empowered to nominate candidates for
directorship and subject to Shareholders” approval at the general meeting of
the Company. The RQNC can also nominate candidates for directorship for
appointment by the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board during the
year shall hold office until the next annual general meeting of the Company

(the “AGM”) and be eligible for re-election.
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The determination of the emoluments of Directors is based on the duties
and responsibilities of the individual Director by reference to the prevailing

market conditions.

The Company has purchased directors’” and officers’ liability insurance for

all Directors.

Remuneration of Directors

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in Note 14

to the consolidated financial statements.

Board Practices

The Board holds meetings regularly at least four times a year. Additional
meetings will be arranged, if and when required. All Directors are given
opportunities to include matters in the meeting agenda. Generally, notice of
at least 14 days is given for a regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice will
be given for all other Board meetings. Minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and available for inspection by the Directors. Directors have
separate and independent access to the Company’s senior management,
and full and unrestricted access to relevant information in a timely manner
with appropriate information in such form and of such quality as will
enable them to make an informed decision and discharge their duties and
responsibilities. The Board has adopted procedures to enable the Directors
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, to assist them in performing their duties, as provided in

the Company’s “Guideline on Independent Professional Advice”.
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During the Year, ten physical Board meetings were held and the attendance HHRGRAEENGEITHRESRGHE B

record is set out below: AL ERE AN

Eligible to No. of Attendance
Directors Attend Attendance Rate (%)
o B R IR H i R 8 Hi R 2 (%)
Mr. MENG Jin Long W A HE e Ak 10 10 100
Mr. LIU Hong Shen B AL IR S A 10 10 100
Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon b #55 HE 10 10 100
Mr. LONG Tao M 4 10 9 90
Mr. REN Guo Hua R E 10 9 90
Mr. CHEN Fang BB S R 10 10 100
Mr. ZHU Jin Long Ne! L 4 HE S A 3 2 67

During the Year, the Directors’ attendance record at the AGM held on 28 RAREEN - FRHER _F—-NELA
September 2016 (the “2016 AGM”) is set out below: “HAHEBEGZBERFERG (ZF—A
SRR AR 6] ) Z RS

Eligible to No. of Attendance
Directors Attend Attendance Rate (%)
o B R H R R 8 i 3 (%)
Mr. MENG Jin Long e e Ak 1 1 100
Mr. LIU Hong Shen BIAL TR S 1 AL 100
Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon B 1 1 100
Mr. LONG Tao HE W Je tk 1 1 Note2 Wit 100
Mr. REN Guo Hua 1 3 58 A 1 1 100
Mr. CHEN Fang B ik e A 1 Rieeeziict2 100
Mr. ZHU Jin Long Net! B4 i g A M 0 0 N/A A
Note: Bff 5

1. Mr ZHU Jin Long was appointed as an Executive Director and vice Chairman 1. MERLAER ZF—ANETHELHEZRE

on 7 October 2016 and resigned as an Executive Director and vice Chairman BT ERE LR R F—LEZH
on 31 March 2017. Zh— A RHMERATE S A B o
2. Directors attended the 2016 AGM by way of a conference telephone. 2. EHEMEEE N 2 N R RO A
Ko

ERRKEBBRA A 23
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Independence

The Company believes that independence brings unbiased judgment
and conscience in decision making. The Board currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors. One of the Independent Non-
executive Directors possesses accounting expertise as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Board received from each Independent
Non-executive Director a written confirmation of his independence and was

satisfied with his independence as required by the Listing Rules.

According to article 133 of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors who served longest on the Board since they were last elected, shall
retire but shall be eligible for re-election at the AGM. Pursuant to code
provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every Director shall retire by rotation at
least once every three years. The Board will ensure that each Director shall
retire by rotation in the above manner in order to comply with the code

provisions of the CG Code.

According to article 110 of the Articles of Association, a Director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board is subject to re-election

by Sharcholders at the first AGM after his/her appointment.

Any re-election of an Independent Non-executive Director who has
served the Board for more than nine years, should be subject to a separate

resolution to be approved by Sharcholders.

Relationship

All the Directors do not have any financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationship with one another.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Chairman and CEO

Mr. MENG Jin Long is the Chairman and Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon
serves as the CEO. Mr. MENG Jin Long provides leadership for the
Board and ensures that the Board worked effectively and all the key and
appropriate issues are discussed in a timely manner. Mr. YEUNG Man,
Simon is responsible for the Group’s business development and day-to-day

management generally.

The Chairman also, by attendance to the meetings of the RQNC, met with
the Independent Non-executive Directors without the Executive Directors

present in the Year.

The responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO have been clearly defined
in the Company’s “Guideline on Division of Roles of Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer”.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years. The term of office

is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the

Articles of Association and the CG Code.

As equal Board members, the Independent Non-executive Directors give the
Board and the Board committees on which they serve the benefit of their
skills, expertise and various backgrounds and qualifications through regular
attendance and active participation. They make positive contributions to the
development of the Company’s strategy and policies through independent,

constructive and informed comments.
Their attendance to Board, Board committee and general meetings are

disclosed in other parts of this Corporate Governance Report.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are identified in all corporate

communications that disclose the names of Directors.
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Matters Reserved for the Board

The Company’s “Guideline on Division of the Roles of the Board and
the Management” has set out clearly the roles of the Board and the

Management.

Matters reserved for the Board include long term objectives and commercial
strategies, corporate and capital structures, financial reporting and controls,
internal controls, material contracts, communications, Board memberships,
remuneration, delegation of authority, corporate governance matters and

policy setting.

The Management is mainly responsible for the execution of the business
plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it from

time to time.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee and the RQNC and delegated authority
to them for overseeing certain aspects of the Company’s affairs. There are
clear written terms of reference for the Board committees. Reports of the

Board committee meetings are presented to the Board regularly.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all the Executive Directors. Currently,
the Executive Committee is chaired by Mr. MENG Jin Long and the
members are Mr. LIU Hong Shen and Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon.

The Executive Committee is delegated to be responsible for the day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the Company and its
principal duties are clearly set out in its terms of reference. The delegated

functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the Independent Non-executive
Directors who possess appropriate business, legal, engineering and financial
experience and skills to undertake the review of financial statements in
accordance with good practice of financial reporting. Currently, the Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. LONG Tao and the members are Mr. REN
Guo Hua and Mr. CHEN Fang.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised on 31 March

2016 to reflect the additional responsibility of the Audit Committee

arising from the Stock Exchange’s amendments to risk management and

internal control under the CG Code applicable to listed companies with an

accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The Audit Committee’s main duties, among others, are as follows:

1)

2)

(3)

“4)

(5)

(6)

@

)

to recommend to the Board the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the independent auditor of the Company (the
“Independent Auditor”), and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the Independent Auditor, and deal with any

questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the Independent Auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with

applicable standards;

to discuss with the Independent Auditor on the nature and scope of the

audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

to develop and implement a policy on engaging Independent Auditor

for the provision of non-audit services;

to monitor the integrity of financial statements and to review the
annual report, interim report and financial statements and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained therein, before

submission to the Board;

to review financial control, risk management and internal control

systems;

to discuss the internal control system with the Management to
ensure that the Management has performed its duty to have an
effective control system, including the adequacy of the resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the

Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal auditors and the

Independent Auditors;

SRR ()

FEREZRTZWERBE O —F - ANE=)
A BT - DR WO B 6 S R =%
—NEE— H— B R B iz ki A R A
Z A AR ST A > T A2 P 3 L e A B % P9
B 2 AT P 5| BOE M % B\ UR T 2 B
HAL-

FEREZBE T EEBE (L el mT:

(1

2

(3)

(4)

5)

(6)

@)

(8)

TR AR 2 ) B8 S A% M (T S )
Z AT~ BT RAT KA ) # e AR
FH 7 e~ b B A M 2 T 4 S B
PRk > DA B i PRAT o] A7 TR L 78 A o
Bz s

4 T30 P 35 ) 2 ) e G 6 A M A
B SL K B B DRI 2 BB

TP 78 A A B e i L B8 S A e
A BT M i ] A % R AT

TIPS P 280 S A 2 3 7 A R 2 A
B 3T PLBAT

AR P K M B R T
FE TR KRR A
7 B % S i I B R - D R B
EXEUNEE YN A N AR
1

ol B B 4 VB B R N B R R
%

SELAE, L I i 1A T B A R A e R AT L
o L AT A e A 2 A R A S -
7 0 2 A o ) A B R e 2
U B TR B A - A ) &
AR 3

T DA% P9 50 A2 S0 LB 7 A% BRI < T ) 1%
s

EERFEEFR AR
2016/2017 F#

27



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

3 B el ()

(9) to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and

monitor its effectiveness;

(10) to review the Independent Auditor’s management letters, any material
queries raised by the Independent Auditor to Management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and the

Management’s response; and

(11) to report to the Board on the matters in code provision C.3.3 of the

CG Code.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the Year and the attendance

record is set out below:

(9) TR 1 8 A% Tk BB Y VR T R R R AR
3w A R AL - 3P R T B B AR R
s

(10) 2 [ 28 7 A% S il =2 57 B o 1 ~ B 2 A%
il 1 4 B 1 M A T AL Bk - IR
EEARCEY PARIE DN Gy &g
i 5] E 5 T

(11) 1) 35 =5 7 BB 9t £ 3845 36 < B < B S
C33ZHH-

L B IR AGE BT T WKk R
ALBREBIINE

Eligible to No. of Attendance
Directors Attend Attendance Rate (%)
2 gEn g ailiRle R R H % 2R (%)
Mr. LONG Tao HE R ek 100
Mr. REN Guo Hua AT 1 2 S Az 100
Mr. CHEN Fang B S 2 100

Representatives of the Independent Auditor attended both

meetings

The main works performed by the Audit Committee during the Year
included the review of the Independent Auditor’s audit plan, the review
of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 and
interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 September 2016
with recommendation to the Board for approval. It has also reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system, approved the internal
audit report and reviewed and recommended the appointment and re-

appointment of the Independent Auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited consolidated
results for the Year, including the accounting principles and practice
adopted by the Group and recommended to the Board for consideration.
The Audit Committee has also recommended the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), Certified Public Accountants as the

Independent Auditor at the forthcoming AGM.
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RQNC

The RQNC comprises all the Independent Non-executive Directors and one
Executive Director. Currently, the RQNC is chaired by Mr. REN Guo Hua
and the members are Mr. MENG Jin Long, Mr. LONG Tao and Mr. CHEN
Fang.

The RQNC has adopted clear terms of reference which are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. Its principal duties
are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management, and to draw
up procedures for formulating an incentive-based remuneration policy.
The RQNC is authorised by the Board to determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management, and is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on remuneration of Non-executive Directors. No Director or any

of his associates will be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The RQNC is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually, assessing the performance of
the Executive Directors, assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members, determining the policy for the nomination of the Directors,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-

appointment of Directors.

In determining the Company’s remuneration policy, the RQNC considers,
among other things, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in

the Group.

The RQNC also reviews and approves compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure it is consistent with contractual terms or is otherwise

fair and not excessive.

The Company provides the RQNC with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. Where necessary, the RQNC will engage independent professional

advice at the Company’s expense.
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During the Year, the RQNC held two meetings and the attendance record is

set out below:

AR Hi - REARRATEEIRGTT
A UCET ik > R AL BRI

Eligible to No. of Attendance
Directors Attend Attendance Rate (%)
HH G g R/ %R B % 3 (%)
Mr. REN Guo Hua 1% 1 i 5 2 2 2 100
Mr. MENG Jin Long e e Ak 2 2 100
Mr. LONG Tao HE R ek 2 2 100
Mr. CHEN Fang B S R 2 2 100

The main works performed by the RQNC during the Year included
review of the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors
and the assessment of the independence of Independent Non-executive

Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility to maintain a good
standard of corporate governance practices and business ethics within the

Group under the terms of reference of the corporate governance function.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company, and performing the corporate governance

duties including:

(1) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

(2) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of the Directors and senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
p g g y req
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

(4) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

(5) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report as required under the Listing

Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having been made specific enquiries by
the Company, the Directors have confirmed compliance with the Securities

Code in their securities transactions during the Year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
were audited by PwC whose term of office will expire at the conclusion
of the forthcoming AGM. The Audit Committee has recommended to
the Board that PwC be nominated for re-appointment as the Independent

Auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

PwC provides an annual audit assurance on the Company’s financial
statements. It is the responsibility of the Independent Auditor to form an
independent opinion, based on its audit, on the financial statements and to
report its opinion solely to the Shareholders, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). The Audit Committee is obliged
to ensure continuing Independent Auditor’s objectivity and safeguard

independence.

For the Year, audit services fee amounted to approximately HK$1,250,000.
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DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure that such financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flows for that period. The Company’s financial statements
are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;

and that judgment and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

PwC, the Independent Auditor, has presented its responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in respect of the Company’s consolidated
financial statement for the Year as set out on pages 62 to 69 of this annual

report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for internal controls and reviewing
its effectiveness. Policies and procedures are in place to ensure that assets
are adequately protected against unauthorised use or disposal and that the
interests of Shareholders are safeguarded. The systems in place are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance

against material misstatement or loss.

The Board maintains an organizational structure with clearly defined levels
of responsibility and authority and appropriate reporting procedures. The
Board meets regularly and has a schedule of matters that are brought to it for
decision in order that effective control over strategic, financial, operational

and compliance issues can be maintained.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

To enable the Company to discharge its annual review responsibilities
pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company has
reviewed the need for an internal audit function since April 2006 and
considered it appropriate to continue with the practice of outsourcing
the internal audit functions. Accordingly, the Company has engaged an
external professional internal control consultant firm (the “Internal Control
Consultant”) to provide internal audit services to the Group on an annual

basis.

The Internal Control Consultant has conducted evaluation and tests in

connection with the following management’s assertions for the Year:

(1) the system of internal control of the Group is effective;

(2) the risk management process of the Group is effective; and

(3) effective internal controls are maintained to safeguard the Group’s

assets.

The Internal Control Consultant also formulates the annual internal
audit plan and procedures, conducts periodic independent reviews on the
operations of each division to identify any irregularities and risks, develops
action plans and makes recommendations to address the identified risks,
and report to the Audit Committee on any key findings and progress of the
internal audit process. The Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board

on any material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

In strict compliance with the requirements of code provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code, the Directors keep reviewing the internal control system of the
Group and further improve the system with respect to financial control,
operational control, compliance control and risk management on top of the
comprehensive review of the internal control system conducted under the
guidance of the Board. In addition, this review also considers the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and

budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.

The Company will continue, where necessary, to improve its internal control

system and strengthen its risk management capability.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon was appointed by the Board as the Company
Secretary with effect from 18 March 2017 in place of Mr. KWOK Siu Man
(“Mr. Kwok”). Mr. Kwok was the Company Secretary during the period
from 13 November 2013 to 17 March 2017. Mr. Kwok was nominated by
Boardroom Corporate Services (HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) and approved
by the Board to assume such office and Boardroom had been providing
certain corporate secretarial services to the Company pursuant to an
engagement letter entered into between the Company and Boardroom. The
primary person at the Company with whom Mr. Kwok had been contacting
in respect of company secretarial matters was Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon (an

Executive Director and the CEO).

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board, and all Directors have
access to the Company Secretary, for ensuring that the Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary
is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of the

relevant corporate governance developments relating to the Group.

Both Company Secretaries complied with the professional training

requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings shall be convened by the Directors on the requisition

of Shareholders pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance.

The Directors are required to call a general meeting if the Company has
received requests to do so from Shareholders representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at
general meetings. A request must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Requests may consist of several documents in like form. A request may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form, and must be

authenticated by the person or persons making it.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Company arranges for the notice to Shareholders to be sent for annual
general meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be

sent at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings.

For putting forward proposals at any general meeting or enquiries to the
Board, Sharcholders shall do so in writing to the Company Secretary.
The letter shall state clearly the identity of the Shareholder, the amount
of sharcholding, correspondence address and telephone number, and the
related suggestions and enquiries. The Company shall, in a reasonable and
practicable manner, pass the said matter to the Board and respond according

to the situation.

In addition, the Company may receive letters or phone enquiries from
Sharcholders from time to time, and the Company will, in a reasonable and
practicable manner, respond as quickly as possible. For matters concerning
the Company’s shares and basic information of announcements, enquiries
shall be put forward to the Company whose contact particulars are as

follows:

Address: Suite 902, 9th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3168 2588

Fax: (852) 3168 2599

Office Hours: 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

Monday to Friday (except public holidays)

The rights of Sharcholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Articles of Association.
Details of such rights to demand a poll procedure are included in all relevant
circulars to Shareholders and will be explained during the proceedings of

meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange

and the Company following each general meeting.
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The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the Shareholders and the Board. Mr. MENG Jin Long, an Executive
Director who is also the Chairman, attended the 2016 AGM. The chairmen
of the Audit Committee, the RQNC and the Independent Board Committee
(where applicable), or in their absence, other members of the respective

committees, are available to answer questions at the Shareholders’ meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationship with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogues
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an

informative and a timely manner.

Currently, investors can assess the Company’s information through
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

(htep://www.crownicorp.com).

The Board reviews the above Shareholders’ communication policy on a

regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has posted its
Articles of Association on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. During the Year, there was no change in the constitutional

documents of the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the first annual Environmental, Social and Governance report
(the “ESG Report”) of the Group in accordance with the ESG reporting
guidelines issued by the Stock Exchange (“ESG Reporting Guidelines”).
Its purpose is to report the Group’s policies and performance regarding
the environment and the society during the Year, and to deepen the

communication with the stakeholders.

The ESG Report covers the Group’s environmental and social performance
during the Year. The data in the ESG Report are obtained from the relevant
departments of the Group and its stakeholders. We welcome and value each
of your feedback. If you have any questions or suggestions regarding this

ESG Report, please feel free to contact us at:—

Address: Suite 902, 9th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: +852 3168 2588

E-mail: info@crownicorp.com

OUR PHILOSOPHY IN ESG

The Group fully understands the importance of protecting the earth, our
precious planet, and prioritizing environmental and social responsibilities.
As a result, in formulating our business strategies, identifying different
potential acquisitions and investments, and fulfilling our business objectives,
one of our major criteria is to integrate our considerations in ESG into our
day-to-day operations, in order to operate the Group in a sustainable and

accountable way.
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ABOUT THE COMPANY

The principal activities of the Group are (i) property investments, (ii) hotel

operations and (iii) financial advisory services.

Property investments and hotel operations segments

During the Year, the Group managed a property portfolio with three
properties. The senior management and the investment and strategic
development department of the Group has also been actively looking for
potential investment projects in the PRC to act for the best interest of the

Company and the Sharcholders as a whole.

During the Year and as at 31 March 2017, the Group held three properties
in its portfolio, which includes a commercial and residential complex in
Zhongshan (“Zhongshan Property”), a hotel property in Jinggangshan City
(“Jinggangshan Hotel”), and a commercial building in Yingkou, Liaoning
Province (“Yingkou Building”). While the Group earned rental income
from the Yingkou Building during the Year, the leasing of Yingkou Building
is an office-based operation. Meanwhile, both Zhongshan Property and
Jinggangshan Hotel were not in operation during the Year, and there were
only minor refurbishment and site cleaning for preparation of the rental
of Zhongshan Property. As a result, there was no significant environmental
impact generated, and we focused our efforts on controlling resource
consumption and general waste disposal in the offices located in Yingkou
and also in Hong Kong, and also the refurbishment and site cleaning of

Zhongshan Property.

Financial advisory services segment

The Group commenced its financial advisory services segment during the
Year through its wholly owned subsidiary named & & & 2. It provides
financial advisory services in certain rapidly developing provinces in the
PRC by consulting and matching property developers and other businesses
in need of debt financing on one hand and financial institutions on
the other. As this segment is new to the Group, and is also an office-
based operation, similar to the property investments and hotel operations
segments, our senior management focuses in environmental protection in

our office.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Office resources management

Living in the earth, our precious planet, we are accountable to build a
sustainable future for our generations and their generations. The Group
believes that everybody, including its employees, should play an important
role to protect the earth and its resources, and is committed to upholding
high environmental standards to fulfil relevant requirements under
applicable laws or ordinances during the operation of the business, including
all necessary requirements under the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China and any environmental legislation in Hong
Kong. The main influences on environment in the process of our daily

normal operation in our offices are consumption of paper, power and water.

Electricity Consumption

Electricity consumption is the major source of indirect greenhouse gas
emission at our offices. During the Year, the Group consumed approximately
219,000 kWh of electricity. The Group sets out several comprehensive
guidelines and measures in relation to energy saving to its employees with an
aim to minimise the greenhouse gas emissions from purchased electricity. A

summary of the guidelines are listed as follows.

In the offices of the Group, we maintain an indoor temperature at an
optimal level of 25 C. We clean the air conditioner and ventilation system
regularly to reduce unnecessary electricity usage. We install LED lighting
system in the offices, and we also encourage the use of natural light.
We encourage our employees to turn off all equipment when not in use,
especially during lunch hours and after office hours. We highly encourage
our employees to make use of modern telecommunication systems, such as
telephone or video conferencing system, to minimise travel arrangements.
We put notices and signs emphasizing the importance of energy saving in

the offices.
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Non-Hazardous Waste Management

The main wastes are the domestic waste from daily operations, and the
domestic sewage generated from staff’s daily usage. The Group promotes
different environmental friendly measures to reduce disposal of non-
hazardous waste (such as used paper) in the Group’s offices. We encourage
our employees to reduce unnecessary printing and photocopying by using
double-sided copying. We also suggest the use of electronic information
systems for material sharing or internal administrative documents. We
encourage employees to treasure and conserve resources by keeping
records of the quantity of stationery and equipment and maintaining a
formal purchase requisition system. We also encourage our employees to
use proper domestic waste treatment methods, and require employees to
dispose of domestic waste to the designated collection containers or places
in accordance with the specified location and time. In offices where sorting
waste is implemented, we encourage our employees to categorise domestic
waste. Employees are prohibited from dumping or stacking domestic waste

arbitrarily.

Refurbishment in Zhongshan Property

During the Year, the Group engaged an independent contractor to provide
refurbishment and site preparation services in Zhongshan Property. The
scope of such services includes cleaning and decoration services such as
removal of debris, cleaning of exterior walls and floors, refurbishment of
lobbies and other facilities, and decoration and setting of sample rooms.
In selecting a third party contractor to perform such duties, the Group
took serious consideration in the background, experience and also the
environmental protection perspective of the contractor. The contractor
selected by us has experiences in handling refurbishment projects in large
residential communities in Shenzhen, and the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that has a
significant impact relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste in
the past three years. Please refer to the section “Supply Chain Management”

below for details of our selection of suppliers.
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During the refurbishment of Zhongshan Property, our site supervisor
regularly monitors the progress of the refurbishment conducted by the
contractor, and check if there were any toxic and harmful materials used
and any contamination of materials. We also checked if the contractors use
the necessary equipment in an energy efficient way. We also emphasised the
importance of avoidance, reduction, reuse and recycling over disposal when

managing wastes during the refurbishment.

CARING FOR EMPLOYEES

The Group considers our employees are the most important asset for
our operations and development. We aim to provide a workplace with
equal opportunity, harmony, continuous training and prospective career
opportunities for each of our employees so as to drive every one of us to

work hard and achieve our business objectives and goals.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a total of 33 employees, including the
Executive Directors. The analysis on the Group’s employees by gender, age

groups, education levels and geographical regions is set out below:—

Employees by Gender
1% 0@ B P 5 & o

@® Male
Pizia

® Female
7

Employees by Education Levels
# e B #F K -F 35

® Sccondary School
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRI Ak w R R G ()

Our employees are located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group
complies with labour laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
Group respects human rights and discriminations on sex, race, ethnicity, age
and religion are strictly prohibited. The Group adopts a non-discriminatory
policy in its dismissal, recruitment and promotion of staffs, and focuses
only on the applicants’ and staffs’ qualifications, experience and merits. To
ensure fairness, our recruitment process includes centralizing the candidate
selection process by the human resources department for Hong Kong
recruitment and the general manager for the PRC recruitment, standardizing
the interview assessments, and undergoing a strict vetting process for the
positions offered. We attach great importance to equal opportunity and
transparent promotions. During the Year, there were no cases of child labour
or forced labour occurred in the Group, and there were no incidents of

discrimination in the Group.

Our compensation, working hours and rest periods are determined
p g p

by reference to our employees’ respective responsibilities, experience,

qualifications and performance. Working hours and holiday arrangements

strictly comply with the relevant labour laws and regulations.

We place strong emphasis on employee welfare and comply with the relevant
provisions of the laws in China and in Hong Kong. We also aim to retain
our talents and minimize staff turnover rates. Our remuneration package
includes allowances, benefits-in-kind, medical insurance, contributions
to pension funds, discretionary bonus, as well as participation in a share
option scheme to eligible employees. Packages of each employee are reviewed
and adjusted regularly to ensure that they are up to prevailing market
standard. The Group remunerates its employees based on industry practice
and the performance of each individual. In China, the Group purchases
social insurance and housing provident funds for employees and distributes
corresponding holiday benefits during holidays such as the Chinese New

Year.

We cultivate an atmosphere promoting excellence in the Group. Employees
with outstanding performance and capabilities are rewarded with financial
incentives such as bonuses and allowances, and/or attractive promotion

packages.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
BRIE g B RnEch (5)

Training and Development

The Group believes that the more the development of the potentials of
the employees, the more prosperous the Company could grow. As a result,
it is one of the Company’s missions to place strong emphasis on career
development of its employees and provide them with extensive trainings.
Based on employees’ career development plans and needs, the Group
strongly encourages employees to attend any necessary external training
courses, workshops and seminars, include job-related skills training,
professional skills training and managerial training. We encourage our
employees to attend external training courses and participate in professional
lectures by providing substantial support to them, such as providing
financial support and encouraging employees to take any necessary leave for
studying. We also provide continuous professional development trainings
to the Directors to enable them to develop and update their knowledge and
skills, and monitor the latest information concerning the industry and its

development.

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group puts the safety and health of employees as our top priority.
Even though the occupational safety and health risks of our Group’s office
staffs are relatively low, we take safety education and training seriously, and
we aim to raise employees’ awareness of safety and to prevent accidents
especially fire. The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that has a significant impact on the
Group relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards during the Year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRI Ak w R R G ()

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Suppliers are crucial to our businesses and operations. The Group aims
at developing on mutual trust among its suppliers. The Group adheres to
international best practices and conducts fair and unbiased tender processes
when dealing with suppliers. Our supply chain management includes a
supplier selection mechanism with a number of stringent selection criteria
subject to the core principles of honesty, integrity, fairness, justice and
transparency. Supplier selection is performed by the corresponding operation
and office managers, and the Group sets out procurement procedures
when dealing with suppliers of goods and services. In supplier selection,
the Group conducts thorough due diligence and vetting process by taking
into account of a number of selection criteria including pricing, quality
of products, company background, past experience and reputation, supply
capacity, any non-compliance of local law and regulations on existing
business, qualifications attained and financial status. Besides, the Group also
expects our major suppliers to understand the importance of environmental
protection and social responsibility and put health and safety as one of their
core principles in doing businesses. Proper internal control measures are also
in place in our procurement system to ensure each supplier engagement is

approved by the appropriate level of management.

The Group also monitors the quality of products and services provided
by its suppliers on a regular basis. Where the Group discovers that the
quality of products and services did not meet our standard, or their services
provided was environmental unfriendly and energy inefficient compared to
their peers in the market, they will be required to make corrective actions
in a timely manner. Otherwise, they may be suspended from any business

relationships with us.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

During the Year, the Group’s customers are from our financial advisory
services segment, and our Yingkou Building leasing operations. Although
there were less than five customers during the Year, our Group values
mutually beneficial long standing relationships with them, and we aim at
delivering high quality services and products to our customers. Besides,
our Group is committed to protecting the information of our tenants. Our
employees are strictly prohibited to disclose the Company’s information
without authorization, including the identity and background and the
contract terms with the tenants. We also make timely response to any

inquiries and renewal quotations from our tenants.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and working environment,
the Group stresses great importance to anti-corruption measures to every
stakeholders including our employees, suppliers, customers and bankers.
Any form of corruption, especially bribery and money laundering is strictly
prohibited. We regularly remind our employees not to accept gifts or
rebates from suppliers or other stakeholders under any circumstances, and
not to receive or accept any gratification from any persons, companies or
institutions whom the Group has business dealings with. To our external
stakeholders such as suppliers, customers, professional parties and bankers,
we are committed to individual and business integrity, adhering to the
business ethics of honesty, integrity, fairness, mutual benefit, and customer
first. During the Year, there was no non-compliance case noted in relation to

bribery and corruption related laws and regulations.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group adheres to the belief of “taking from society, and giving back to
society”. Apart from maintaining sound business development, the Group
also actively takes initiatives in community investments by actively involved
in the nurturing of talents in both the PRC and Hong Kong. Besides, the
Group encourages employees to take part in work-life balance activities
and community services, including various culture events, community

volunteering, employee outings, and supporting charitable organisations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG CONTENT B TESGIN & & 5l

INDEX

Index
%5l

The Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guidelines Index requirements
15 22 Bt ESGHR # 4 91 & 51 B

Chapter
1]

A. Environmental

A, B

Al Emissions
Al HEH
General disclosure Information on:
— e ¢ % A 1R % SR il A SRS R~ T K B e b B B A E S R )
B A S Y
(a) The policies; and
(@ R K
(b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer, relating to air and greenhouse
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
(b) 77 3 AT AN AT TR 5 2 A A R 0 A R R A
AR o
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.
PR SEAAR R A LS | i 2t TRl AR T P 4 O e O 4 2R

Environmental Protection

PR BRI

A2 Use of Resources
A2 B[

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and

— B R other raw materials.
A R U (R BB IR 7Kk B S AR ) MY BUK
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas

P S A AR AR I A2, 1

or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility)
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—  electricity consumption only

-

KPI A2.3
B S AR AR TR A2.3

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
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46

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2016/2017




Environmental, Social and Governange Report‘ Continugg)
R A ARG ()

Index The Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guidelines Index requirements Chapter
]| 168 22 R ESGHR % 47 51 % 51 Bl i

A3  The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 BEIRRRER

General Disclosure | Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment | Environmental Protection
— bR and natural resources. At i P B
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B. Social
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B1 {1

General Disclosure | Information on: Caring for Employees
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(a) The policies; and

@ BUK: R

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer, relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits
and welfare.

(b) 77 3 AT AN A TR 5 B B A R A R LA

L

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical
B S SAEIEB1.1 | region.
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(a) The policies; and

(@) BUOR: K&

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer, relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
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Index The Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guidelines Index requirements Chapter
=5l 16 22 T ESGHR % 4 91 % 51 Bl 5 B

B3 Development and Training

B3 e Kl

General Disclosure | Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging | Caring for Employees
— B duties at work. Description of training activities. B %08 B
A B AR TR B R AT A I A S B 5 B Y BB o 4t 55 4 ) -

B4 Labor Standards

B4 %5 THEHY
General Disclosure | Information on: Caring for Employees
— B R A B B 1k TR ) 45 T B 5208 5

(a) The policies; and
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(b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labor.
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B RER o

B5 Supply Chain Management
Bs i o A B

General Disclosure | Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. | Supply Chain Management
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B6  Product Responsibility
B6 & fih BT
General Disclosure | Information on: Product Responsibility
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Wi 25
(a) The policies; and
@@ B K

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer, relating to health and safety,
advertising, labeling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
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B7 Anti-Corruption/Bribery
B7 REG M

General Disclosure | Information on: Anti-Corruption
— B R A B 7 1k B B~ B R TR R VR R R RE{G

(a) The policies; and

() BOR: &

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer, relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

(b) S B AT N A T OK5E B A B s R e L 4

B R o

B8 Community Investment

B8 ALY

General Disclosure | Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the | Community Investment
— e communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take | Fk [ 4% &

into consideration the communities’ interests.
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Report of the Directors
S e

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial

statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
provision of management services to subsidiaries. The Group is principally
engaged in the business of hotel operation, property investments and
provision of financial advisory service in the PRC. The principal activities
of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 17 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis by operating segments of the Group’s performance, assets and
liabilities for the Year is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 70 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the

Year (Year 2016: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer
was approximately 72% of the Group’s total turnover and the aggregate
turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for

approximately 100% of the Group’s total turnover.
The Group did not have any purchase recorded for the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
or any Sharcholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of

the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers noted above.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donation during the Year (Year 2016: Nil).

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties for investment purposes are set out in

Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 73 of this annual

report, respectively.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2017, calculated
under sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to

Nil (31 March 2016: Nil).

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the shares issued in the Year are set out in Note 25 to the

consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

No debentures were issued by the Group during the Year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 152 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
e ()

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) listed on the Stock Exchange, nor did the Company or any of its

subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the Shares during the Year.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 June 2005, which
expired on 4 June 2015 (the “Expired Scheme”) and no further options

could be granted pursuant to the Expired Scheme.

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”)
at the AGM held on 25 September 2015, for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. A summary of the principal terms of the New

Scheme is set out below:

(i) Eligible participants of the New Scheme include the Directors,
including the Independent Non-executive Directors, other employees
of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of
the Group, any consultant, advisor, any person or entity that provides
research, development, other technological support or services to the
Group, the Shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder of the

Company’s subsidiaries.

(i) The New Scheme became effective on 25 September 2015 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from

that date.

(iii) The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of the share options to be granted under the New
Scheme is 260,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the shares in issue

of the Company as at the date of approval of the New Scheme.
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(iv)

)

(vi)

Report of the Directors (Continued)

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon the exercise of the share options granted under the New Scheme
(including both exercised or outstanding share options) to each grantee
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company for the time being (the “Individual Limit”). Any
further grant of share options in excess of the Individual Limit in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
must be separately approved by the Shareholders in general meeting of
the Company with such grantee and his/her close associates abstaining

from voting.

The option period during which an option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the New Scheme at any time shall be a
period to be determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence from the offer date, but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option

subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer to
a grantee, there is no minimum period required under the New Scheme

for the holding of an option before it can be exercised.

(vii) A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the

grant of an option.

(viii) The subscription price for the Shares under the New Scheme shall be a

price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the higher
of (a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the Shares
on the offer date, which must be a business day; and (b) the average
of the closing prices of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five business days immediately preceding the offer

date.
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(vi)

(vii)
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(ix) The life of the New Scheme is until the tenth anniversary of the
adoption date of the New Scheme or the date on which the New
Scheme is terminated by resolution of the Sharcholders in general

meeting, whichever is earlier.

During the Year, no share options were granted, exercised or cancelled or
lapsed under the Expired Scheme or the New Scheme and no share options

were outstanding as at 31 March 2017.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were

as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. MENG Jin Long
Mr. LIU Hong Shen
Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon
Mr. ZHU Jin Long
(appointed on 7 October 2016 and resigned on 31 March 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. LONG Tao

Mr. REN Guo Hua

Mr. CHEN Fang

Pursuant to article 133 of the Articles of Association, at each AGM one
third of the Directors (the number nearest to and less than one-third) who
have been longest in office since they were last elected or appointed by the

Shareholders shall retire but shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. LONG Tao and Mr. REN Guo Hua shall retire and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the Year or during the period from 1 April 2017 to

the date of this annual report are available on the website of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. REN Guo Hua and Mr. CHEN
Fang, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. At the date of this annual report, the Company considers

all of them to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 15 to 18 of

this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The emoluments payable to Directors (including Executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors) were determined with reference to
their respective job responsibilities and the prevailing market rate for their

respective positions in the Group.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company, which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance when this report prepared
by the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the

Companies Ordinance.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the

Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2017 and up to the date of this annual report, none of
the Directors, the controlling shareholders or substantial shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or their respective close
associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) was interested in any business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the

business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as set
out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements, no transactions,
. . . 5 .
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

end of the year or at any time during the Year.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2017, none of the Directors or the chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which were required: (a) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO; or (b)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code as set out in the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests or short positions of the corporations or

persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, in

the Shares and underlying Shares, as recorded in the register maintained by

the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of Shareholders

B 5 4 B

Crown International Corp.
Limited (“CIC”)

558 I B 4R A R A
(M5 b )

Crown Landmark Corporation (“CLC”)
BB EMARAR (TREEM])

Crown Landmark Fund L.P. (“CLF”)
Crown Landmark Fund L.P. ([ CLF])

Crown International Fund Corporation
(“CIF")
Crown International Fund Corporation

(TCIF))

Nature of Interests

HE 25 PE ]

Beneficial owner

A A

Beneficial owner

HaHA A

Interests in a controlled corporation

R Z 25

Interests in controlled corporations

R Z a5
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Shares/ Approx. % of

underlying  total number of

Notes Shares issued Shares
(e ¥ )

i3/ Bty Bz

P % BB AT (%)
1&3 748,700,000 26.17%
1&3 1,300,000,000 45.45%
1&3 1,300,000,000 45.45%
1&3 1,300,000,000 45.45%



Name of Shareholders

JBE 5 4

Redstone Capital Corporation
(“Redstone”)

Redstone Capital Corporation
(['Redstone |)

Hung Man (formerly known as
Xiong Shu Min) (“Ms. Hung”)
A (HUAE B ([RE &)

Good Wealth Holdings Limited
(“Good Wealth”)

Good Wealth Holdings Limited
([ Good Wealth |)

Chai Shanshan (“Ms. Chai”)
SemA (M5 &4:1)

Lan Tianfeng (“Ms. Lan”)
MRB ([HW&1])

Notes:

Report of

Nature of Interests

25 7R
Interests in controlled corporations

SR M 2 25

Interests in controlled corporations
Y Z iR
Beneficial owner

EcX7 2PN

Interests in a controlled corporation

Y Z AR

Interests in a controlled corporation

SR M 2 25

1. 1,300,000,000 Shares were beneficially owned by CLC, which was 100% owned
by CLF which in turn was 100% owned by CIF, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Redstone. 748,700,000 Shares were beneficially owned by CIC which in turn
was held as to 100% by Redstone. Redstone is solely owned by Ms. Hung.

Therefore, by virtue of the SFO, Redstone was deemed or taken to be interested
in all the Shares beneficially owned by CLC and CIC and Ms. Hung was

deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares interested or deemed to be

interested by Redstone.

the Directors (Continued)
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Shares/ Approx. % of

underlying  total number of

Notes Shares issued Shares
AR TR

et/ v

Fit i MR  BEAE (%)

1&3 2,048,700,000 71.63%
1&3 2,048,700,000 71.63%
2&3 260,000,000 9.09%
2&3 260,000,000 9.09%
2&3 260,000,000 9.09%
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2. The interests in 260,000,000 Shares were derivative interests which were
beneficially owned by Good Wealth which in turn was 62% and 38% owned by
Ms. Chai and Ms. Lan, respectively. Therefore, by virtue of the SFO, Ms. Chai
and Ms. Lan were deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares beneficially

owned by Good Wealth.

3. All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the Shares and

underlying Shares.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out on pages 19 to 36 in the

section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix
27 of the Listing Rules for the Year are set out in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 37 to 49 of this

annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events after the reporting period are provided in Note

28 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year, the
key factors affecting its results and financial position, the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Company and compliance with laws and regulations
are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of

this annual report.

Information about a fair review of, and an indication of likely future
development in, the Group’s business is set out in the sections headed
“Chief Executive Officer’s Report” and “Management Discussion and

Analysis” of this annual report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s stakeholders™ relationship is set out
P p
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual

report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

PARTICULARS OF IMPORTANT EVENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Board has not identified any
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the

Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to and within the
knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient public float of more than 25%
of the Company’s issued shares during the Year and up to the date of this

annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
have been audited by PwC who will retire and, being eligible, will offer itself

for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

MENG Jin Long

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2017
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Indgp(;ndent Auditor’s Report
T ~r A% R R

_E
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CROWN INTERNATIONAL
CORPORATION LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Crown International Corporation
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on

pages 70 to 151, which comprise:

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017;

*  the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a

summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared

in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the

Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

T 37 A% 5l e o (46

Key Audit Matter
oW o 7 it =

Valuation of investment properties

B W 5 A

Refer to notes 2.8 and 16 to the consolidated financial

statements.

i 2 B £ S B R B k2.8 S 16

The fair values of the investment properties held by the Group
were approximately HK$1,881,563,000 as at 31 March 2017,
with a revaluation gain for the year ended 31 March 2017
recorded in fair value adjustments on investment properties of
approximately HK$160,008,000.
REF-EE=ZA=Z+—H, HEEGFREWENL
FAEAI %1,881,563,0008 70 s ME_F—~LFE=H=+—
H 1k B B AR B 45 S A 3 0 1 R S A A T AW B R A
160,008,000 7 ©

Crown International Corporation Limited
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FoAM {1 A Tl AT i P B g A S 2R O

Our procedures in relation to the management’s assessment of
the fair value of the investment properties included:

T AN A 2L 2R Ay 3 O S T A A AT RO R I
15 :

*  Evaluation of the independent external valuer’s

competence, capabilities and objectivity; and

R AL 8 S A/ il 6 B B S A ~ BB ) B L



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
E i e

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

BE YR E (A7)

Valuations performed by the independent external valuer
appointed by management were obtained for all the
investment properties to support management's estimated
fair values, which were derived using the direct comparison
method. The valuations were dependent on certain key
assumptions that require significant judgement, including
fair market prices of the completed investment properties
and construction cost estimates for renovation of one of the
investment properties.

PG Ot B A 4% 3 22 AR S A ER Al B R S HR A5
1B > DA S F7 45 B 05 ) 9 L o 3 3 A P P A £ 5 o A
EHR VA T B Sl st - 5 AR B B > MR E T
J AR ) S B O ST i AR DA B BT G b — JE B 3 B Al
G 3%

We focused on this area due to the significance of the
investment properties balances and the significant judgement
involved in making the key assumptions in determining the

valuation.
FRAM B B O SR > AR B AR K > HOR
TE A AE R T A1 R S 8L 3 0 B B M) B o

T 37 A% 5 e o (%)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FAM 04 7 B4 17 BiE B ) S A RSO

*  Involved our internal valuation expert to discuss with
the independent external valuer and assessed the
methodologies used and the key assumptions used,
including fair market price of the completed investment
properties and construction costs estimates. We
compared:

SR BAM Y P TSl 250 5K SR S b TS Al B
36 7 BT J5 3 e B SRR - A TR B B
R BLAT T B DA % Al s SRR » BRAM B BE R

(a) the current market price to the publicly available
market data of comparable properties in the same
location; and
Ie] — M [ ) T bk 8 40 S 14 B AT T (B B AT A
Wk &

(b) the construction costs estimates to the construction

contract signed with the contractor by the Group.

il W S 58 AR BELA 5 A S T B RT R S
“%O

. Checked, on a sample basis, the published external
market data for the accuracy of the input data used by
the independent external valuer.

i bR 2 % CL B A1 1 3 i 3 o - e R S A1 S A A
FilE BT PRI i \ Bk Y A

Based on the procedures performed above, we found the key
assumptions used in the management’s assessment of the fair
value of the investment properties were supported by the
available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

T 37 A% 5l e o (46

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
. . S . .
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.
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Indpp(;ndent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
M A% B R ()

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obrtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Chan Hin Gay, Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Aok B 22 ThT WAL B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F—L#=H=—+—H I FF

2017 2016
—F-LHE ZF-AF
Note HK$’°000 HK$000
B 5% Tt T
Revenue &= 5 12,024 3,514
Other gains, net At 2 ) 3 A 6 272 13,595
Waiver of other payables 0 At A AR 7 728 103,211
Fair value gains on investment properties BEYEZ A FHER 16 160,008 191,330
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts PSS 8 - 57,221
Staff costs i H A 9 (13,571) (8,696)
Depreciation g 15 (1,389) (1,258)
Impairment of goodwill T 2 A 19 - (65,496)
Other operating expenses HoAs 58 7% B 2 10 (30,012) (44,287)
Operating profit #85 Yei A 128,060 249,134
Finance income W KA 11 3,155 1,132
Finance costs A A 11 (7,915) (31,502)
Finance costs, net g AHEHE (_4_,7_6_0_) ______ (_3_013_7_02 B
Profit before income tax B T 15 B Wi i A 123,300 218,764
Income tax expense Jir A9 B B 2 12 (41,960) (46,498)
Profit for the year ewws 81,340 172,266
Other comprehensive loss: Al 4 TH s 38 -
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to LRI REH BT EH IR Z
profit or loss: IE H:
Currency translation differences A R (79,268) (62,574)
Total other comprehensive loss for the year Wb & mE#HMEH (79,268) (62,574)
Total comprehensive income for the year AR Py A TR SRR 2,072 109,692
Profit attributable to: PLF 2 J5 AN w6 )
Owners of the Company ENASSE XN 81,179 172,266
Non-controlling interests EIR 2 e 161 =
81,340 172,266
Total comprehensive income attributable to: DA % J5 JE 1l 42 T Wt A
Owners of the Company PR X DN 1,919 109,692
Non-controlling interests I e B A 153 -
2,072 109,692
Basic and diluted earnings per share A2\ B A ON REAY A N
attributable to owners of the Company B Bk A Je it )
for the year (expressed in HK cent per share) ( DL B il 2 51) 13 2.84cents il 6.35cents il

Dividends

The notes on pages 76 to 151 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

i B AR DL AR

Asar 31 March 2017 B —F—tL#E=H=+—H

2017 2016
L ZE—AH
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5% T T
ASSETS B E
Non-current assets I B &
Property, plant and equipment LE BN T 15 4,862 8,026
Investment properties Ed LvES 16 1,881,563 1,828,920
Available-for-sale financial assets W] fk B B R 18 700 1,128
Goodwill [k 19 - -
1,887,125 1,838,074
Current assets i B B
Trade receivables B 5 ME Wk ] 20 8,475 -
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits U A 1 WK IE
T R K 3% 4 21 3,530 49,815
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KB a5 22 85,289 74,563
97,294 124,378
1,984,419 1,962,452
LIABILITIES ffH
Current liabilities Ui B £
Other payables and accruals Al A5k ik B R T R 23 30,655 27,612
Income tax payable JRE A e 5t 2,082 -
32,737 27,612
Net current assets Ui B 64,557 96,766
Total assets less current liabilities H8 % DA B A 1,951,682 1,934,840
Non-current liabilities I I B £ £
Other payables JE At W8 A5k sk I 23 356,240 358,040
Deferred income tax liabilities 4L it 15 B A £ 24 379,859 363,289
| 0 . (210
Net assets & T 1,215,583 1,213,511
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Consolidateq Statement of Financial Position
e AR LR

Asat 31 March 2017 B —F—tL#E=H=+—H

2017 2016
—F L ZF-AF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Pt T T#T
EQUITY HE 4%
Capital and reserves AR T fifk G
Share capital A 25 1,309,124 1,309,124
Other reserves HC Ath i 5 (93,694) (95,613)
1,215,430 1,213,511
Non-controlling interests Ik ¢ B 2 153 -
Total equity BE i A4 AR 1,215,583 1,213,511

The financial statements on page 70 to 151 were approved by the Board of WIORISIHZMBERER -F—-LEAN

Directors on 30 June 2017 and were signed on its behalf ETHEEEgHE WHD T ALREHE
HEHE
Mr. MENG Jin Long Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon
A A B 85k A
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
Ev 1T B

The notes on pages 76 to 151 are an integral part of these consolidated W76EISITHZ MR AG A M BEREZ —

financial statements. #4y o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes ip Equity
b 45 HiE 35 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LY 2N 1
(Accumulated
losses)/ Non-

Share Capital Exchange Revaluation retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity

(Bit#)/
123 Bk G E 54k f i ff G A RERA M BB s A
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T T T
Balance at 1 April 2016 REF-AENA—H 24 1,309,124 7915 (50,598) 12,025 (64,955) 1,213,511 - 1,213,511

Comprehensive income: 2HRA:

~ Profit for the year ~ R - - - - 81,179 81,179 161 81,340
Other comprehensive loss: KAl 2 :

- Currency translation differences -RIHE AR - - (79,260) - - (79,260) ®) (79,268)
Total comprehensive income EITIN ¢ - - (79,260) - 81,179 1,919 153 2,072
Balance at 31 March 2017 REB-LEZH=F—HZ

i3 1,309,124 7915 (129,858) 12,025 16,224 1,215,430 153 1,215,583
Balance at 1 April 2015 REF-HENA—H 2 &R 971,402 7915 11,976 12,025 (237,21) 766,097 = 766,097
Comprehensive income: RHERA:

— Profit for the year ~4p Al = = = = 172,266 172,266 = 172,266
Other comprehensive loss: b RUEST

- Currency translation differences — SR - S (62,574) S o (62,574) = (62,574)
Total comprehensive income EXToN = - (62,574) - 172,266 109,692 - 109,692
Transactions with owners in their AN (DHBHAZ A1)

capacity as owners: iﬁﬁz&% :

~ Issuance of shares (Note 25) — BT (HFik2s) 337,722 - - - - 337,722 - 337,72
Total transactions with owners in their HEHA (DEEHAZSH)

capacity as owners 2R HAH 337,722 - - - - 337,722 - 337,722
Balance at 31 March 2016 REF-AEZA=ZA—HZ

it 1,309,124 7915 (50,598) 12,025 (64,955) 1,213,511 - 1,213,511

The notes on pages 76 to 151 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolida‘ged Statement of Cash Flows
HEBERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F—L#=H=—+—H I FF

2017 2016
L
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Wi it il T
Cash flows from operating activities REFHZBSHE
Profit before income tax ik Pt 45: 8 i ¥4 1) 123,300 218,764
Adjustments for: GLECERER
Finance costs Bl R AR 11 7,915 31,502
Finance income MM A 11 (3,155) (1,132)
Depreciation PreE 15 1,389 1,258
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BERRHEZ
plant and equipment (&A) KEHE (167) 310
Gain on de-registration of subsidiaries Fi Jig 2 ) S 88 ik 1 2 R 6 (546) -
Exchange losses [ 3¢ 5 18 10 9,159 26,740
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries A B R A H 2 B 6 = (840)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At EMBEEZ
financial asset WAH i 1H 6 441 -
Fair value gains on investment properties &Y EZ N PEHARN 16 (160,008) (191,330)
Provision of impairment of goodwill T2 2 A T - 65,496
Reversal of provision for impairment of At JE Wk E 2
other receivables AL 955 44 % || 8 = (57,221)
Recovery of an amount due from VXL W |l 488 43 8 3 8 = E Ik
Management Services Limited (“VSLMSL”) BRAS PLR B A PR A A
previously written off (TH A ) 208 — (12,890)
Waiver of other payables 0 At A R 7 (728) (103,211)
Changes in working capital R 4ASE
Changes in trade receivables B 5 I Wk T 5 ) (8,475) =
Change in other receivables, HC Ath R W R 0 ~ T A KO
prepayments and deposits ) & ] (167) 500,015
Change in other payables and accruals At B A5F 3% 08 M2
JEFH £ A B (3,633) (22,226)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations REeEE® (W) Bz
Bl 4w (34,675) 455,235
Income tax paid [BEERIEES ) - -
Net cash (used in)/generated from REWE (W) Bz
operating activities B4 3 (34,675) 455,235

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A B R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2017 2016
B L ZE-AHF
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
B T8 T-#o0
Cash flows from investing activities BREGH B R
Purchase of property, plant and equipment A E - W R ik (262) (3,262)
Cash acquired in acquisition of a subsidiary, Wt i — ] et Jg 2 W) B 45
net of consideration paid B4 (B TAHRE) - 129
Proceed from disposal of property, HEWE- BERZHEZ
plant and equipment P 5 sk E 2,000 250
Repayment of consideration payable 18 12 A QA = (312,200)
Repayment of a loan receivable A i — 2P L B K 46,440 =
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries H B W 2 W =2 P A R E - 125,003
Interest received oA & 3,155 1,132
Net cash generated from/(used in) HEEHHRS (A Z
investing activities B4 53HE 51,333 (188,948)
Cash flows from financing activities MEGHZHARE
Transaction cost in relation to issuance of BT Z A 5 A
new shares = (278)
Repayment of promissory notes 18 92 7K g = (162,000)
Repayment of amount due from VXLMSL 18 I M W e R A5 PR R 0 6 = 12,890
Advances made to independent third parties BT AL = 2 #aRk = (83,221)
Repayment from independent third parties BArE =Rk = 36,801
Interest paid [SEREEIPsS = (7,260)
Net cash used in financing activities g w2 R e FHE = (203,068)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents HEkBe&EEY 2
B 16,658 63,219
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year A 4EH] Z B4 LB 4 ZE Y 74,563 34,630
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents BeRB&EEDZ
[ 56 s 5 (5,932) (23,286)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RAERZHERBEEED 22 85,289 74,563

The notes on pages 76 to 151 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consglidated Financial Statements
55 B W R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F—L#=H=—+—H I FF

1

/6

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activities of Crown International Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Company are
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are (i) property investment,
(ii) hotel operations and (iii) provision of financial advisory service,
whilst those of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is Suite 902, 9th Floor,
Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company has its shares traded on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Directors consider the ultimate
holding company to be Redstone Capital Corporation, incorporated in

the Samoa.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

Dollar (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue

by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements of Crown International
Corporation Limited have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of

investment properties and available-for-sale financial assets.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2016/2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B Wk M Ak (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) Effect of adopting new standard and amendments to

existing standards

The following new standard and amendments to existing
standards are mandatory for the Group’s financial year

beginning on or after 1 April 2016:

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 16 and Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
HKAS 38 (Amendment) Depreciation and Amortisation

HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer Plants

HKAS 41 (Amendment)

HKAS 27 (Amendment) Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

HKERS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities:

HKAS 28 (Amendment) Applying the Consolidation Exception
HKERS 11 (Amendment) Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
HKERS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
HKEFRSs (Amendment) Improvements to HKFRSs (2012-2014)

The adoption of these new standard and amendments to
existing standards did not result in a significant impact on

the results and financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B iR M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F—L#E=H=—+—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards that

have been issued burt are not yet effective

The following new standards and amendments to existing

standards have been issued, but are not effective for the

Group’s financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2016

and have not been early adopted:

HKAS 7 (Amendment)
HKAS 12 (Amendment)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKERS 9

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

(Amendment)

HKERS 15
HKEFRS 15 (Amendment)

HKERS 16

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses'

Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions®

Financial Instruments®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with Customers®
Clarifications to HKFRS 15

Leases’

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2017

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2018

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2019

Effective date to be determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGGFBUORBIE (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 AL HE (4)
(b) CHEMH R AR AT

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards that

have been issued but are not yer effective (Continued)

The Group has commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new standards and amendments to existing standards
and set out below are those that are expected to have

material impact on the Group’s accounting policies.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instrument” addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of financial
assets and liabilities. It replaces the guidance in HKAS
39 that relates to the classification and measurement of
financial instruments. HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the
mixed measurement model and establishes three primary
measurement categories for financial assets: amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income and
fair value through profit or loss. The basis of classification
depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Investments
in equity instruments are required to be measured at fair
value with the irrevocable option at inception to present
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income not
recycling, provided the instrument is not held for trading.
If the equity instrument is held for trading, changes in fair
value are presented in profit or loss. For financial liabilities
there are two classification categories: amortised cost and
fair value through profit or loss. Where non derivative
financial liabilities are designated at fair value through
profit or loss, the changes in the fair value due to changes
in the liability’s own credit risk are recognised in other
comprehensive income, unless such changes in fair value
would create an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in
which case, all fair value movements are recognised in profit

or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B iR M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F—L#E=H=—+—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

30

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards that

have been issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
(“ECL”) rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case

under HKAS 39.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and extent of the Group’s
disclosures about its financial instruments particularly in the

year of the adoption of the new standard.

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years commencing
on or after 1 January 2018. Based on the transitional
provisions in the completed HKFRS 9, early adoption in
phases was only permitted for annual reporting periods
beginning before 1 February 2015. After that date, the new
rules must be adopted in their entirety. The Group plans
to adopt the standard when it becomes effective in 2018
without restating comparative information; and is gathering
information to quantify the potential impact arising from

the adoption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGGFBUORBIE (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 AL HE (4)
(b) CHEMH R AR AT

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards that

have been issued but are not yer effective (Continued)

HKEFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” —
This new standard replaces the previous revenue standards:
HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts”, and the related Interpretations on revenue
recognition. HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining when to recognise revenue
and how much revenue to recognise through a 5-step
approach: (1) Identify the contract(s) with customer; (2)
Identify separate performance obligations in a contract; (3)
Determine the transaction price; (4) Allocate transaction
price to performance obligations; and (5) Recognise revenue
when performance obligation is satisfied. The core principle
is that a company should recognise revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to the customer
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Revenue recognition model under the
new standard moves away from risks and rewards approach
to transfer of control approach. HKFRS 15 provides
specific guidance on capitalisation of contract cost, license
arrangements and principal versus agent considerations. It
also includes a cohesive set of disclosure requirements about
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with

customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B iR M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F—L#E=H=—+—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

32

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments to existing standards that

have been issued bur are not yer effective (Continued)

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the
application of HKFRS 15 and based on its preliminary
assessment, the Group does not expect the adoption would
have a material impact to the Group’s results of operations

and financial position.

HKFRS 16 will result in operating leases being recognised
on the balance sheet, and the distinction between operating
and finance leases is removed. Under the new standard,
an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial
liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions
are short-term and low-value leases. The accounting for

lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting date, the
Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments
of approximately HK$6,161,000, see note 26(a). The
new standard will therefore result in an increase in assets
and financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position. As for the financial performance impact
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
operating lease expense will decrease, while depreciation and

amortisation and the interest expense will increase.

Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception
for short-term and low value leases and some commitments
may relate to arrangements that will not qualify as leases

under HKFRS 16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the
Group does not intend to adopt the standard before its

effective date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B Wk M Ak (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured entity)

over which the Group has control. The Group controls

an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,

variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has

the ability to affect those returns through its power over the

entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which

control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

(a)

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values

at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by

HKEFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B iR M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F—L#E=H=—+—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

84

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combination (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are

recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 in profit or loss. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income (Note 2.9).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEGEHEURMEE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued) 2.2 MHE AW ()
2.2.1Consolidation (Continued) 22145 H (#F)

(a) Business combination (Continued) (a) EBHOE(H)
Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised HLEBETAFRMZRY
gains on transactions between group companies are Te 55 Bk DA Je 8 5 2 R Bt
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless LR ELAH B 6 o REEB]
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment W 1R 75 ELAH S8 > BRIE %
of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts 22 G v W) Py R A
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform T AL B0 AR 3 i o B R
with the Group’s accounting policies. AMEREHCERRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B iR M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F—L#E=H=—+—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

36

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change
in carrying amount recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The fair value
is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive

income are reclassified to the profit or loss.

2.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less

impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required

upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend

exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in

the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of

the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the

carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the

investees net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 ERGHETBORBER (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

2.5

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-

maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments, has been identified as the executive directors that

makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar (“HKS$”),
which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where item are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying

cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

38

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

(c)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified as available for

sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for cach statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 ERGHETBORBER (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Currency translation differences arising are recognised

in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to

profit or loss.
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e B iR M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F—L#E=H=—+—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

90

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the

period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, furniture and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 3 to 5 years
Computer, office equipment and machinery 3 to 20 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their expected

useful lives to the Group.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
. . . .
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than

its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“other gains-net” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 ERGHETBORBER (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents
the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the

fair value at the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal

management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the brand level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing
the goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not

subsequently reversed.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as investment properties when
the rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted for as if

they were finance leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

92

2.8

2.9

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each of the
end of reporting period by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

If the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to being
held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the Group, it is reclassified
as an investment property, measured at fair value at the date of
reclassification and the difference between the fair value and the
net book value of the investment property is recognised in the

other comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill
or intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B Wk MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFELE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purposes
for which the financial assets were acquired. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12 months after
the end of reporting period. These are classified as
non-current assets. Loans and receivables are classified
as ‘Trade receivables’, ‘Other receivables, prepayments
and deposits’ and ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or the Group intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the end of reporting

period.

2 ERGHEIBORBR (4)

2.10 B4 % & e

2101 3

A G5 I L B B A A R
B 45 3 = Bk B ME WOk I > A
Be vl it H B B o B
A 243 ST WO % 45
B R Z H W o AR BRI 5
Tt R R A A B

(a) Bk S ME Wk H

B e HE WO IH 2 WA
A 35 B T 45 W 2 JE AT
P VA5 S - AR A B
] fe S A K > He Rt AGRE)
R > MR B TR
el R R+ A W
8 T R 23 U FE IR
BB o Bk M ORI
T A 5 5 R DL AR A o
B0 ¥ o ORI ]
I3t Kk I ~ FEA K
W Rt | B [ B4 Je Bl
EEEM] -

(b) AT B

YA B A A AR
SE T ME RN B A B AT
iy He At 50 2 JE AT A T
Ho> Hat AJER B & &
BRIk ORI > Ak
6 S e I OR R+
il 3 A H B 4

ERRKEEERAA 93
2016/2017 F3#



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

94

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.2Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-
for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the consolidated statement of

5 . « o »
comprehenswe income as “other gains, net .

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as part of other income when the Group’s right to

receive payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B Wk MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFELE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency

or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

2.12Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial

assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears

or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

96

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. If a loan or held- to-
maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable

market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is

recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFELE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGGFBUORBIE (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
212 M B & AR (4)
(b) #HHH Al

2.12Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a

group of financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss,
the impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence
that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income —
is removed from equity and recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on equity instruments are not reversed through the

consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

2

98

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash

equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at call with

banks.

2.14Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to

the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGGFBUORBIE (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.14 B HA B 3% %€ P 45 B8 (48)

2.14Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deterred income tax (b) B 3Bl
Inside basis differences P R 2 o 55 L

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income

tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.14Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

100

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is
unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference
for associates. Only when there is an agreement in place
that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of the
temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax
liability in relation to taxable temporary differences arising

from the associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be

utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGGFBUORBIE (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15Provisions 2.15 $E

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlements is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any

one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax interest rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

2.16Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.17Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 5 e M Rk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are generally held in separate trustee-
administered funds. Contributions to the MPF Scheme by

the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of

the employees’ basic salaries.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the government of
the PRC. The retirement scheme contributions are based

on a certain percentage of the salaries of the subsidiaries’

employees.

The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income in the period in which they relate.

(c) Bonus plan

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the
profit attributable to the Company’s owners after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where

contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that

has created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGGFBUORBIE (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17Employee benefits (Continued) 217 R B A (#)

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination when the entity
has a detailed formal plan to terminate the employment
of current employees without possibility of withdrawal.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of

the reporting period are discounted to their present value.

2.18Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

2.19Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-

line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for services
provided. The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for the Group’s activities, as described
below. The Group bases its estimates of return on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customers, the type

of transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of service

The Group provides financial advisory service to customers.
Financial advisory service income is recognised in the

accounting period in which the service is rendered.

2.21Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

104

A contingent asset or liability is a possible asset or obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow of economic resources occurs so that

the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain,

an asset is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()
For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 A HE B A B
3.1 WA A B %

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group has not used any derivative financial instruments to

hedge its risk exposures.

Risk management for the Company and its subsidiaries is carried
out by the Executive Committee (“Excom”). Excom identifies,
evaluates and monitors financial risk in close co-operation with
the Group’s operating units. The Group monitors the financial
risk continuously to minimise the risk, such as foreign exchange
risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and

cash management.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in HK dollars and Renminbi
(“RMB”). The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk

arising from its investments which are located in the PRC.

As at 31 March 2017, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against HK dollars, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$5,932,000 higher/lower (2016:
approximately HK$6,551,000 higher/lower) respectively.
The movement in the profit or loss relates mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of RMB

denominated other receivables and other payables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credir risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to

receivables and bank deposits. The exposures to these credit

risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of receivables, the Group closely monitors the
credit performances and prompt repayments from the
counterparties. The Group has policies in place to review the
recoverability of other receivables on an ongoing basis and

assess the adequacy of provision for impairment.

In respect of bank deposits, the Group has diversified its
exposures into different financial institutions. It has policies
in place to assess the credit standing of the counterparties

and financial institutions before the Group invests its assets.

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of the
Group’s available cash and other interest-bearing loans that
the Group considers appropriate. Equity and other long
term financing including strategic partnerships, or strategic

joint ventures are also considered by the Group in its capital

structuring.

The Group monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity reserve

which comprises borrowing facilities and cash and cash

equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFELE

St 55 J e 4 B (#)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the date of the consolidated statement of financial
position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted

cash flows. Balances due within 12 months approximate

3

3.1 J B LB R R (4)

(c)

it ) B < B (AT

DEVES - FdR
W1 H 2 76 5 390 ) 4 A B 2 30
AL HE 4T 22 50 AT o 2 BT 3
B2 UM A A PR I BB
St o R B BUR B A
Ko+ 2 A MBI Z &8

their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not B i A4S AR AT o
significant.
Within Between Between
lyear 1and2years 2 andS5 years Total
—4EN — E W 4E W2 1A o
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T35 ARV T T
As at 31 March 2017 hoE— L
=ZH=Z+—H
Other payables and accruals At JRE AR sk T B
it £ 45 30,655 358,200 - 388,855
As at 31 March 2016 PR NEZH
=+
Other payables and accruals Lt JRE AR sk T B
JE 5t A % 27,612 368,000 = 395,612
Interest rate risk (d) FI&m Fi

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank deposits. The
Group monitors and limits its interest rate risk exposure
through management of maturity profile and choice of fixed

and floating interest rates.

The Group does not have significant cash flow interest rate
risk as the interest-bearing assets have no significant impact
to the Group. The Group does not have any interest bearing

liabilities.

The Group currently does not use any interest rate
derivative contracts or other financial instruments to hedge

against its interest rate risk exposure.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2

3.3

108

Capital risk management

The capital structure of the Group consists of owner’s equity,
which include cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company which comprises the issued

share capital and accumulated losses.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue to provide returns for
shareholders and to support the Group’s stability and growth.
The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure optimal capital structure to maintain a balance between
higher shareholders™ returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to total
capital ratio. Management considered that the Group’s capital
risk is minimal, as there no borrowing as at 31 March 2017 and

31 March 2016.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair

value, by valuation method. The different levels have been

defined as follows:

*  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level
2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level

3).
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Annual Report 2016/2017

3 B b R ()

3.2

3.3

A Ja B B

SR 2 AR L B A
AR i > L o 45 B 4 R B4 AR
W DA e A 2 ) R 25 5 AN A B
g > T A o> v BE A 5 AN A HE 2
B OB R AR R -

A A B A 2 R A R A
5 A B ) R 0 T R 3 T
Be X Fp AR B Z REE B o A
V2 SO0 e e A L S A - DL
T AR BT J5 A R - A T B
] e (T RE P BE B oK P )
SRS A AR DL AR 2 I 25 e
DR IR 2 ) JBUA P 27 > 3 PR 68 3 19
U5 Bl T R R A A o

AR E BB R AR
PR EE A o i A AR Y %
—LEEEZAZT—HRZRAF
ZHZEA4— B A W g
Ry A AR ) 2 A SR B A S

AT A2 fh it
TERTIHAFEIIRZ W H TR
TG 6 J5 L AT Z 50 BT o A Tl i 4
FREWMT

o A R SR RS BT
ZHME(REHE) (58—
) -

o BRSE - BPTE R Z WS
A B R R A\
A (R AE 2y (A ) B 1
£ (BT A2 B fE# ) B0 15
(% =#) -

- HHREESARZIBAZY
i WY L i 5 ek (P
AT B WA ) (=
;) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFELE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 A Es R B AR B ()

(Continued)
3.3 A FEZAE (%)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial instruments

TERBINR=ZA=Z=+—HA%EHE

that are measured at fair value at 31 March: WMATFHEFIEZMBE T H:
Level 2 Total
B B
HK$'000 HK$’000
T T
As at 31 March 2017 R o2 —-tE=ZH=1+—H
Assets &R
Available-for-sale financial assets club wl A B B | A R
debenture 700 700
As at 31 March 2016 BB -ARE=ZH=1T—H
Assets &R
Available-for-sale financial assets club wl A B B T R
debenture 1,128 1,128

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of reporting period.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an

arm’s length basis.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an

instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 WH ke A PR (4)
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 A FEZ A EF (%)
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that TREFIR=ZH =1 — H ARG %
are measured at fair value at 31 March: (Continued) NTEFRZ G E KA (4)
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable il — JE 8K, 22 YA B K i A 4 8 Ik
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. J 7 AT B T B o RIS T
A=
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments B TR s B 6 2 4 A A
include: J7 kS
*  Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar e HUTHZWEHHBEKRS
instruments; TR AL
*  Other techniques, such as inputs from recent arm’s length o BRI (BFEEM AT
transaction or discounted cash flow analysis, are used to A2 5 2 i NS B &R
determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. Wi Bl AT ) B R % T R
ZATPE -
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 for both years. B B BB Z R
AR 4 JEE P SIF7 0 o 438 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B Wk M Ak (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the accounting policies described in Note
2 above, the Group has made the following judgments that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the financial position
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are disclosed below.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates

(a) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year in which such determination is made.
It is the Group’s policy to recognise deferred tax assets for
unused tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on all
available evidence. Recognition primarily depends on the
Group’s expectation of future taxable profit that will be
available against which tax losses can be utilised. The Group
has measured the deferred tax relating to the temporary
differences of their investment properties using tax rates and
the tax bases that are consistent with the expected manner
of recovery of their investment properties. The details of the

assessment are disclosed in Note 24.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B iR M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F—L#E=H=—+—H I FF

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)

(b) Investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is individually
determined at each reporting date by independent valuer
based on a market value assessment. The valuers have relied
on direct comparison method as its primary methods.
Details of the valuation techniques and assumptions have

been disclosed in Note 16.

4.2 Critical accounting judgement

(a)

Impairment of assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill or
assets that have indefinite useful lives have suffered any
impairment. Other assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit has been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates,

such as discount rates, future profitability and growth rates.

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment

information based on the regular internal financial information

reported to the chief operating decision-maker, namely the executive

directors, for their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s

business component and for their review of the performance of

that component. The business components in the internal financial

information reported to the executive directors are principally engaged

in property investment, hotel operations and provision of financial

advisory service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()
For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 W KadaEr (4)

INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) BN M 2 W 2k

(a) Analysis of revenue by category

(b)

2017 2016

—F L —F-AHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#u T#T

Rental income e A 3,359 3,514
Financial advisory service income 4 vl L R R B WA 8,665 =
Revenue L& 12,024 3,514

Segment information

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
services they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments
represents a strategic business unit which is subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of other business
segments. Pursuant to an announcement made by the Group on
27 September 2016, it has adopted financial advisory service as
a new business segment as a result of a change in the Group’s
strategy. Revenue in relation to the financial advisory service
provided has been recognised in this business segment for the
year ended 31 March 2017. The Group has adopted the new
organisation structure as the reporting format effective for the
year ended 31 March 2017. Summarised details of the business

segments are as follows:

i)  the property investment segment engages in investment
of properties in cities of Yingkou, Jinggangshan and
Zhongshan of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
the Group aim to use these properties for properties rental

or capital appreciation purposes;

(b) 4 &k & B

A AR ) 8 R SR AR R AR
BB T R A R s 4y B R
Pllo ARER ] 2 SEFH A RS B KM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B iR M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F—L#E=H=—+—H I FF

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

114

ii)  the hotel operations segment engages in hotel rental and
food and beverage business. The executive directors are
actively pursuing new opportunities for investment in hotel
operations. As at 31 March 2017, certain opportunity has
been identified and is currently under the consideration by

the executive Directors;

iii) the financial advisory service segment engages in the
provision of financial advisory service to assist customers
to obtain financing. This new business segment was

commenced in September 2016; and

iv) the unallocated segment comprises operations other than
those specified in (i), (ii) and (iii) above and includes that of

the corporate office.

The investment properties in the cities of Zhongshan and
Jinggangshan of the PRC were under refurbishment and had not
yet started to operate as at 31 March 2017.

Capital expenditure comprise additions to investment properties
and property, plant and equipment. Segment assets consist
primarily of property, plant and equipment and receivables.
Segment liabilities comprise deferred tax liabilities and operating
liabilities. Unallocated assets and liabilities mainly represent
assets and liabilities used by the corporate office, which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable basis to any segment. They include

items such as corporate borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B Wk M Ak (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ — & — L4 =H ="1—H ILF &

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

The Directors assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of segment results, which represent, operating
profit less central administrative costs. The segment results,
depreciation, and capital expenditure based on reportable

segments for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as

5 Wtk Koy E R (48)

(b) 7 #EF (%)
ER Vi S A
Tk P S AT BORAR ) R I Sy R
BleME-FE-LERZF-AHE
ZHAE IR > A
R 4y Z Ay ER e T R E A

follows: SE
Financial
Property Hotel advisory
investment operations service  Unallocated Total
T8l L 1Y)
MR E 0 i e 1 le#  KamREA At
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T T F#T SR T#x
For the year ended BRE-FZ-LE
31 March 2017 ZAEt—HIEEE
Segment revenue: i L&
Revenue from external customers K H MBS % P 2 W £ 3,359 - 8,665 - 12,024
Segment results Vi E 156,835 (459) 6,097 (34,413) 128,060
Finance income B WA 3,155
Finance costs Al Rl A (7,915)
Profit before income tax B B 15 % i i 123,300
Income tax expense i 7 B Il 52 (41,960)
Profit for the year A ¥ A 81,340
Other segment information oAl 3 0 & B
Depreciation i (211) = (44) (1,134) (1,389)
Fair value gains on investment REMEZ A FHERN
properties 160,008 = = = 160,008
Additions to wE
— Property, plant and equipment  —#)3 ~ K7 K ik = - 249 13 262
— Investment properties S 3-t/ES 7,782 - - = 7,782

EERKEEFR QA
2016/2017 F# ]- ]-5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B iR M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F—L#E=H=—+—H I FF

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 Wi K EbE R (4)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) 4 # e R (A1)
Financial
Property Hotel advisory
investment operations service Unallocated Total
EA
WERE 0 B RAEEA At
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

T T T T T

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_ZZ—AFEZH

Z=t—HILEE

Segment revenue: Sy -

Revenue from external customers 2K A AMI & F 2 W2k 3,514 = - - 3,514
Segment results EEL 251,150 (113) = (1,903) 249,134
Finance income A ON 1,132
Finance costs il B A (31,502)
Profit before income tax iz B 7 50 i i 218,764
Income rax expense Fi A3 B 3 (46,498)
Profit for the year kgl 172,266

Other segment information oAb & B

Depreciation x4 (216) = = (1,042) (1,258)
Fair value gains on investment RENEZ

properties A TAERA 191,330 = = = 191,330
Impairment of goodwill T B 1 (65,240) = S (256) (65,496)
Additions to wE

— Property, plant and equipment  —#)3 ~ B & ik = = = 3,202 3,262

— Investment properties S 3 LUES 50,758 = = = 50,758
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

5 Wtk Koy E R (48)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue of approximately HK$1,999,000 and HK$1,360,000
(2016: HK$2,050,000 and HK$1,464,000) were derived from
Customer A and Customer B in the property investment segment
respectively. Revenue of approximately HK$8,665,000 (2016:
Nil) was derived from Customer C in the financial advisory
service segments. No other single customer contributed 10% or
more to the Group’s revenue for both the years ended 31 March
2017 and 2016.

The segment assets and liabilities based on reportable segments as
at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

(b) 7 &R ()

L EE S IaFd v

#11,999,000% 7€ } 1,360,000 G
(=& — N4 12,050,000 8 &
1,464,000%5 70 ) Z Wt 25 43 73l 2K A 4
HRESHZEFRREF L%
8,665,000% JC ( = F — N 4F : )
Z Wk 2k B 4 b IR B 4 E8 2
FEW oML — & F AR
HREFE—LER R —AE
ZEAZ+—HIEFRFEEERK10%
BPL B R e

RE-F-LERZE-AFE=A
=t H o A S S 2 o

MEELAMWT
Financial
Property Hotel advisory
investment operations service  Unallocated Total
AL LT A B
MmERE 0 i 2 it HH At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
At 31 March 2017 [ Sl k3
S EN
Segment assets Vg4 1,886,443 - 8,989 3,698 1,899,130
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEED 957 = 3,796 80,536 85,289
Total assets el 1,887,400 = 12,785 84,234 1,984,419
Segment liabilities o0 L B (745,687) = (2,118) (21,031) (768,836)
Total liabilities AREE (745,687) - 2,118) (21,031) (768,836)
At 31 March 2016 BN
ZHA=+—H
Segment assets A 1,834,394 - - 53,495 1,887,889
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBESED 704 = = 73,859 74,563
Total assets Y A 1,835,098 - = 127,354 1,962,452
Segment liabilities Vin: BNt (737,697) - = (11,244) (748,941)
Total liabilities ARAH (737,697) - = (11,244) (748,941)
ERRKEBBRA A

2016/2017 F#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 5 e MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F—L#E=H=—+—H I FF

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

118

The Group’s businesses operate in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016
and non-current assets as at 31 March 2017 and 2016 based on

geographical area are as follows:

(b) s+ ¥R (4H)

5 Wedk Koyl E R (4)

ACHR A 7 8 i O R S o A
FEBEE_F-LER-ER A
HEZH =t H R A A e
Vil & VN3 SN s v Y
FANEZA=E+— H e )

SZIEMBEREN T
2017 2016
e e L
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T oo
Revenue W 2

PRC H B 12,024 3,514

Non-current assets IR By &
Hong Kong P 2,059 5,441
PRC B 1,885,066 1,832,633
1,887,125 1,838,074

Revenue is categorised based on the jurisdiction in which the
customers are located. Non-current assets are categorised based on

where the assets are located.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

OTHER GAINS, NET

A W B Wk M Ak (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

6 At £8 A A

2017 2016
“E b ZE A
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# 5t Tt
Impairment loss on available-for-sale ] A B B B R A 4R
financial assets (Note 18) (KFEE18) (441) =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B B B o W) 2 B - 840
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, MEW - WE Rz
plant and equipment A (BH) 167 (310)
Recovery of an amount due from VXLMSL W IE] A T g 2
previously written off (Note) JRE Wi e A P I (B ) - 12,890
Others oAty 546 175
272 13,595
Note: Bk =

VXLMSL was formerly a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the
entire equity interest of VXLMSL was disposed of by the Company pursuant to
an agreement dated 29 November 2014 between the Company and Big Country
Investment Limited (“Big Country”), an independent third party. VXLMSL
and the Company did not fully reconcile their intercompany accounts before
the disposal was completed and Big Country agreed to settle such accounts
after completion of the disposal. As a result of the full reconciliation of the
intercompany accounts in August 2015, it was noted that there was an amount
due from VXLMSL to the Group amounted to HK$12,890,000 and an amount
due by the Group to VXLMSL amounted to HK$5,917,000. Pursuant to the
Deed of Confirmation and the Deed of Waiver of Debt dated on 20 August
2015. Big Country agreed to repay the amount due by VXLMSL to the Group
amounted to HK$12,890,000 and also waived the amount due by the Group to
VXLMSL amounted to HK$5,917,000 (Note 7).The amount due by VXLMSL
to the Group was fully settled by VXLMSL on 9 March 2016.

SR B AR A Z AT R E M E A ] KA
B RE S H AR 2 )RR B R B 3T 8 = U Big
Country Investment Limited ([ Big Country J)
FRET S B8R R —WE+—H T uEZ
Tl 1 B o LBRAR B R AR 4 W) R A B o8
BT 43 ] T MG H 4 i #HR - 1 Big Country
[ e H A 58 WA A5 S B R K o 4 ) MR
H Rt & — T4 )\ H 2T B A% - 3 B i
A HLE A AR 42 19112,890,000 % G » 1 A< 42 [
Il A B34 BL5,917,00095 JC o AR IR Y %
—HAEN\H =+ BT L 2 e 308 S R
S IR > Big Councry W] 725 A 3w B 5 HILJE £+
A4 ] Z 5K TH12,890,0009 JG > [] B 40 AR
AR VA SRR B 22 BRI 5,917,000¥ 00 (B
FE7) cRBEBMOR R -AEZHLHEZ2
SO A A AR A ) 2 RO o

EERKEEFR QA
2016/2017 F# ]- ]-9



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 5 e MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F—L#E=H=—+—H I FF

7 WAIVER OF OTHER PAYABLES

7 ¥ S0 30 At FE AF K JE

2017 2016
—F L ZF-AF
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T#7t T#T

Waiver of an amount due to VXLMSL (Note (6)) 0 JE A B R A BH K O
(B 3E(6) ) - 5,917

Waiver of part of the consideration payable PR i L 23 A i 5 4 98 43
due to early repayment (Note i) JE A AR (BT ) - 97,294
Wavier of director’s fee payable (Note ii) A A A (B G 728 -
728 103,211

ii)

120

Crown International Resort Limited (“Crown Resort”), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company acquired
the entire equity interest of Zhongshan Hualian Industrial
Development Corporation Limited from Sino Oasis
Oversea Limited (“Sino Oasis”) for a total consideration of
HK$1,008,000,000 of which HK$700,000,000 had to be
satisfied by cash. Without considering the discounting effect,
the consideration payable was HK$624,400,000 as at 31 March
2015. On 31 March 2016, Sino Oasis and Crown Resort entered
into an agreement, pursuant to which Sino Oasis has agreed to
waive part of the outstanding consideration payable amounted
to HK$100,000,000 in return for an early repayment of the
consideration amounted to HK$300,000,000. The repayment
of HK$300,000,000 was made on 11 March 2016. The present
value of the amount waived during the year ended 31 March

2016 is HK$97,294,000.

As at 31 March 2017, Mr. Zhu Jin Long was resigned as the
executive director of the Company and waived the director fee for

the year due to his early resignation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

REVERSAL OF PROVISION FOR 8 i 13t B Il

DOUBTFUL DEBTS

2017 2016
= S R S
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# 0 T#T
Reversal of provision for consideration JAEE WAL A A 43 415 438 Tl (B3 )
receivable (Note) = 57,221

Note:

On 5 June 2014, “U” Inns & Hotels Investment Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
Mr Liu Xiong (“Liu”) to dispose its entire equity interest in “U” Inns &
Hotel (Jinggangshan) Limited (“U Inns Jinggangshan”) for a consideration of
approximately RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$63,092,000).
Taking into account a deposit paid by Liu in January 2014, upon completion
of the disposal, consideration receivable amounted to approximately
RMB48,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$60,548,000) remained
outstanding. Since the completion of the disposal, the Group’s management has
attempted to recover the receivable but without success. In November 2014, the
Group has commenced legal action to try and recover the outstanding balance
from Liu. Considering the uncertainty surrounding the outcome of the planned
legal action, management has made a full provision against the outstanding
balance during the year ended 31 March 2015. “U” Inns & Hotels Investment
Limited was disposed to an independent third party on 8 January 2016 and the
receivable and its related provision was transferred to Crown Tianhe Resources

Limited prior to the disposal.

In January 2016, a settlement arrangement was reached between Crown
Tianhe Resources Limited and Liu, pursuant to which Liu has agreed to
return the entire equity interest in U Inns Jinggangshan to Crown Tianhe
Resources Limited, as a settlement of the outstanding balance amounted to
RMB48,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$57,221,000). As a result
of the settlement arrangement, the provision for consideration receivable
amounted to RMB48,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$57,221,000)
was reversed during the year ended 31 March 2016. The abovementioned

acquisition of U Inns Jinggangshan was accounted for as an asset acquisition.

it -

PR PAENH I H - R AR E A
R 2y ) (A A | 2 2 W e 2 W) ) B2
So s (TRIS6 4 ) 5T or B 9 o > o 45 L
PR & AR S (FF R W) A R A (TR
B 2 R I W L) AR M - ARET A A
R #50,000,0007C (1 46J# #163,092,000%
J6) c MEIRBI AR ZE-NE—ABX
£ e 4 > i 18 56 B JE IR T 49 A R
48,000,0007C (%% 1% #160,548,000%5 7G ) 113
RWCIE o B W 58 B - A 4 A4S B B
Wi TR ik ARSI R R B o Y & — DU 4R
b 3 AR [ DA R AT W) - DL 1 B
e 2 W T AR T A o BN R L AT B 2
HRGEARWHFE - FHEORARE-Z
—HAEZ H =4 H IR AR R R A5 AR AR
2 - R BRI E AR AR SR =
F—ANFE—HANABHET—-BBLE=D
T 2% WEE 0k T 5 L ) 48 40 % 1 5 0 L o
T8l RAE VA PR A o

MoZ—ANFE—A B RMEEARRA
] BB 5 A A A 22 4k > R 0k - B A
T Ty 5 58 R R U PR 4 )R R 1 AR
IR L Tz 4 B RE > DA B R M el & iR
A RH48,000,0007C (FH 4 A £157,221,000%
TG ) o e AR 22 B o E ORI AN R
48,000,0007C (F 4% 1% #157,221,000% 70 ) &
MBREZR-ANEZA=ZT— HILEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 U 5 e MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F—L#E=H=—+—H I FF

9 STAFF COSTS

The staff costs disclosed below are for all employees and include all

Directors emoluments (Note 14(a)).

9 fEB WA

TR R B R B > B
BERZME (MaE14a) °

2017 2016
—F2-LHE ZF-AF
HKS$’000 HK$'000
Filse F il
Directors’ fees WA A 5,720 3,065
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits Wt 4 B At R B A 7,088 5,380
Provision of unutilised annual leave A W AR AR F A - 5
Mandatory provident fund 58 A B 4 230 156
Social security costs (Note i) AL DR BB AS (B sED) 533 90
13,571 8,696

Notes: W ik

i) All employees of the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC who are
PRC citizens participate in employee social security plans enacted in the
PRC, including pension, medical and other welfare benefits, which are
organised and administrated by the government authorities. According
to the relevant regulations, the Group contributes on a monthly basis
based on certain percentages of the salaries of the employees, subject to
a certain ceiling, and are paid to the labor and social welfare authorities.

Contributions to the plans are expensed as incurred.
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10 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ao W 5 AR M (f)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

10 - th £8 2 BA 32

2017 2016
—“E—LHE ZE—AH
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl T
Legal and professional fee Y e 1,942 2,541
Consultancy fee JBEL P 6,224 70
Auditor’s remuneration % 95 i 1 4 1,297 1,230
Exchange losses i 58, i 18 9,159 26,740
Office rental N LA 6,038 7,410
Business travel expenses T 5 75 ik BA 3 654 348
Property tax LIE 747 366
Business entertainment T 75 e 4 801 365
Motor vehicle expenses FLHL B 3 546 486
Registration and announcement fee Bl kA& 510 551
Others HoAth 2,094 4,180
30,012 44,287
FINANCE COSTS - NET 11 & A 5
2017 2016
—E2—LH TR ANF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T#I0
Interest expense: FEBH 3
Accretion of consideration and other payables PRAET B2 FE A 8 A+ ik S 2
(Note 23) JE#E# H (BffE23) (7,915) (24,995)
Interest on notes payable JE £ S 98 = F B = (6,507)
Finance costs il Bl AR (7,915) (31,502)
Finance income: BB
Interest income from other receivables L Al J7E Wk JEH 2 R BB 595 207
Bank interest income SRAT A B LA 2,560 925
Finance income B WA 3,155 1,132
Net finance costs il & R AN 5 (4,760) (30,370)

EERKEEFR QA
2016/2017 F# ]- 23



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ao 3 W 5 AR M (f)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F—L#E=H=—+—H I FF

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12 Fr i3 B B ¢

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income represents:

Aok B A T WA AR N A B 2 BT 4

i

2017 2016

e

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T-#o0

Current tax — PRC B3R A JE — o [ 2,193 -
Adjustment in respect of prior years 208 A 4 BE i A i B = (2,807)
Deferred taxation HE %L B JE 39,767 49,305
41,960 46,498

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate

AR 1 I3 P 45 B T i ) -2 5 B 0
AR S AT B Z MBEF I BRF 2

applicable to the results of the consolidated companies as follows: PR AR Z 2B ¢
2017 2016
—2—tE —®AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T#oT
Profit before income tax W T 45 56 T ¥ ) 123,300 218,764

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to
profits in the respective jurisdictions

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue

Deferred tax assets not recognised

Adjustment in respect of prior years

Income tax expense
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3 FH 7% 4% ] 0 i e ) 2

BB R G 2 B
AL A1 B B 3 Z Bl 5

S Bt W B 2 B I

A 4 JBE P A4 i

Fie 13- Bt B 32

&

37,953 44,060
7,022 27,678
(7,751) (29,375)
4,736 6,942

- (2,807)
41,960 46,498




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B Wk M Ak (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 30.8% (2016: 20.1%).
The increase is caused by a change in the profitability of the Group’s

subsidiaries in the respective places.

The applicable rate of Hong Kong profits tax is 16.5% (2016: 16.5%).
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax (2016: Nil) has been made
for the year as the Group has no assessable profit for the year (2016:
Nil). Provision for China corporate income tax is calculated based on
the statutory tax rate of 25% (2016: 25%) on the assessable income of

each of the Group’s PRC entities.

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per ordinary share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the

year.

12 B3 Be b 32 (4)

Jin BE - 35 586 FH BL R 5530.8% ( ZF—~
4 120.1% ) o BN 775t A< 45 [ 4%
Hh B} A T 2 R g H B A BT S o

BFBAARZEHBRL16.5% (ZF
—INAE 1 16.5% ) o HR AR AR B 4 ) I f
JERBLGF ( ZF— N4 M) > BUAAR
A PN S A W A A B th B (2%
—NAE ) o W A SE TS BB A T AR
R A 5 1 45 v R R LB ML A i
ERLE25% (ZF— N4 :25%) 55

13 #5522 A
() MU I 2 HEAS TR T DAAE P A
2% M 2 545 A HE A 36 B DL 6
AT 0 I 20 T 4 W 5

2017 2016
—F £F ZZ-A%
Profit for the year attributable to AN A N EAGE N
owner of the Company, HK$’000 A > T-#E 0 81,179 172,266
Weighted average number of OB EERZ
ordinary shares in issue T - ¥ 8% 2,860,000,000 2,713,661,202
Basic earnings per ordinary share, HK cents B I 9 B B AR R - WA 2.84 6.35

(b) The calculation of diluted earnings per ordinary share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares used, which is
the same for calculating basic earnings per ordinary share above,
as the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares arising from share options for the two years ended 31

March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

(b) B M 2R 2 BT TS DA
A2 T BN HE AR AF 7 % A st
B b SO M 0 B 2z Bk R 2 A
Fiv FH 2 40 1] 3 228 T o AR - 3%
K% - FRNERAAREREZR
—EE=ZA=+—HRTFNF
Z A=A H kA AR P S S YRR
Ji P AR 2 A 4 M A O MR

EERKEEFR QA
2016/2017 F# ]- 25



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 14 & F 280 M KA i
DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EFEEEITHABZME
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set HHEER LR FHITBANB Z 3
out below: mT:
For the year ended 31 March 2017: BE_F-ELHE=A=1T—HI
AR

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

AN DL (A 2% ) ok 3L 5 ) S 0 8 05 i sl 2 P

Emoluments paid
or receivable in

respect of director’s
other services in
connection with
the management

Employer’s of the affairs of
contribution to the Company
retirement benefit or its subsidiary
Name Fees Salaries scheme undertaking Total
MEFR A
BB B
TOHH R 43
2 i
aRiN i i 1 2
124 s ¥i% Z I 3 Btk HE e 2 T 2 k|
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
Executive directors AfrESH
Meng Jin Long Fa 1,500 - - - 1,500
Liu Hong Shen LIRS 1,500 - - - 1,500
Yeung Man, Simon (a) B () 1,392 - 18 - 1,410
Zhu Jin Long (b) RAH®b) 728 - - = 728
Independent non-executive RNy
directors
Long Tao i 200 - - - 200
Ren Guo Hua REE 200 - - - 200
Chen Fang B 200 - - - 200
5,720 - 18 - 5,738
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFELE

14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 14 #E 32 H A R 8 (4)
DIRECTORS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EHERERITHEABZHE
(Continued) (%)
For the year ended 31 March 2016: BKEZF-AF=ZA=Z+—H1L
ARJE -

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

B ANE DR RGBTSR %) & b 2 ORI I LA sk 2 T &

Emoluments paid

or receivable in
respect of director’s
other services in
connection with
the management

Employer’s of the affairs of
contribution to the Company
retirement benefit or its subsidiary
Name Fees Salaries scheme undertaking Total
B
R AR A 5
JEF I 4
I MR
B A At [ISAEE
1% s e Z M8 % fitk 3 ed kS bk
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
Executive directors BEE
Meng Jin Long Hi 800 - - - 800
Liu Hong Shen BAR 800 - - - 800
Yeung Man, Simon L 865 - 17 258 1,140
Independent non-executive L DER Yy £
directors
Long Tao ik 200 - - - 200
Ren Guo Hua L3 200 - - - 200
Chen Fang B 200 - - - 200
3,065 - 17 258 3,340
Notes: B Rl =
(a) Mr. Yeung Man, Simon was appointed as the chief executive officer ) WA R _F—ANET+HLHEESR
of the Company on 7 October 2016. FER AR AT AT BLAAE -
(b)  Appointed on 7 October 2016 and resigned on 31 March 2017. (b) REF-ANFEHHAGAERMERR
Mr. Zhu waived his director’s fee of HK$728,000 during the year FLHEEZH=Z1—HEHME-ERN- MR
due to his early resignation. o A TR i G AR T i 3 WG A 4

728,000 JG

EERKEEFR QA
2016/2017 F# ]- 27



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e

Bk 25 A P R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

128

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

The Company’s executive directors represent all of the
Company’s chief executives. Accordingly, no separate disclosure
in respect of the remuneration of the chief executives is made in

the financial statements.

No emoluments were paid to any director as an inducement to
y
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office during the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination

benefits during the year (2016: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’

services (2016: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such

directors

As at 31 March 2017, there was no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors (2016:

Nil).

Crown International Corporation Limited
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14 HHEZHmM B (4])

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

ERLEFITRARZHE
(#1)

AR AT T T A T A Sk
ATBOA B o 180 > 5 25 3 3¢ 19 3 9
5347 Ve S5 AT BN L

REE-F—-LE=ZA=Z+—HIk
A JE > A ) S S 1) A ] 3 S A
A T < > A1 2 28 200 55 i A A 5
HEYIN N L =Y R R
R BRI A (T — N ) o

3 2 2k 08 0 1 A

AR HE B o OO O IR
LT R R R A (= F —oN4E
) -

R T o IR A i ) 5 =0
32 R

REEZF-LE=ZA=1+—HIk
AP > AR ) S S M T o R
I A2 A 58 =07 AR (=% — N
) o

HEUES  ZGFEFR
il Z 3 Wl B L% 5 7 T
ZHBAXZENZ Hk -
Fak b 52 5 2 &R

REF-LHE=ZA=+—H B
DAEE - 52 S el 2 g %
RZEFEFRBZHMAZHEAZ
k- R R b2 5 K (2

TN ) o



14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFELE

14 HHFZHmAM R & (4F)

DIRECTORS (Continued)

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, (e)

()

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in

relation to the Group’s business to which the Group was a party

and in which a director of the Group had a material interest,

whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year (2016: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in

the Group for the year comprise 4 directors and 1 employee

(2016: comprise 3 directors and 2 employees). The details of the

emoluments payable to the 1 employee (2016: 2) during the year

EHRNZS - KRG AP
Z HOKHE R

A% S AR O S A 5 I 3 B AT n AR
ESUE & SR ALk XN PN
af > HL AR AR SR AT A IR T 3 2%
AR ERZ S~ KPR B K
(ZF—RE ) -

EIE2 I-F P N=n

G N L E T I N o )
HULEFEARE (ZF R
A=A EFRRRARE) -
FENENZE A (ZFNFE W

are presented below: Z)EBZ MR 2F W T -
2017 2016
A
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T#u T#T

Salaries and other short-term employee 7 4 B At e 30 8 B

benefits 1,500 907
Pension costs — defined contribution plan TR AR 4 i AR — S AL Kk i 18 17
1,518 924

Number of individuals
N

2017 2016

“E—bE B AE

Emoluments band

HK$1 — HK$500,000
HK$500,001 ~-HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000

T4 4 i [

1% 78— 500,000 76
500,001%5JC — 1,000,000%5 JC
1,000,001¥%5 JG — 1,500,000 %5 7T
1,500,001%5 ¢ — 2,000,000 %5 J&

EERKEEFR QA
2016/2017 F# ]- 29



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 P 3& ~ W o Bk i
Computer,
office
Furniture equipment Leasehold Motor
and fixtures  and machinery ~ improvement vehicles Total
B>
YN ]
HIRREE Bobk 25 M O ok
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
T#x T T#x T T
As at 31 March 2015 REF-TE=ZA=+—R
Cost JA 5,437 9,732 - 4201 19,390
Accumulated depreciation LHEiE (5,387) (5,545) s (1,677) (12,609)
50 4,187 - 2,544 6,781
Year ended 31 March 2016 REZR A
ZA=Zt—HIERE
Opening net book amount AF ) R i 50 4,187 - 2,544 6,781
Currency translation differences A 55 3 (11) (185) - (3) (199)
Additions HE 82 207 973 2,000 3,262
Disposals & - - - (560) (560)
Charge for the year B (49) (332) (324) (553) (1,258)
Closing net book amount AR SR I T I 72 3,877 649 3,428 8,026
As at 31 March 2016 REF-AEZA=Z+—R
Cost JA 145 4,879 973 4,370 10,367
Accumulated depreciation AR (73) (1,002) (324) (942) (2,341)
72 3,877 649 3,428 8,026
Year ended 31 March 2017 RE-Z LA
ZA=Zt—HIESE
Opening net book amount A R 72 3,877 649 3,428 8,026
Currency translation differences A 05 - (204) 2 2) (204)
Additions hE 13 S 249 = 262
Disposals & - - - (1,833) (1,833)
Charge for the year B (50) (331) (367) (641) (1,389)
Closing net book amount AR SR R T ¥ 35 3,342 533 952 4,862
As at 31 March 2017 I S Y TS |
Cost A 156 4,642 1,222 2,366 8,386
Accumulated depreciation A (121) (1,300) (689) (1,414) (3,524)
35 3,342 533 952 4,862
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFELE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 KW %
2017 2016
NS S o R AN S
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
At 1 April W —H 1,828,920 1,672,411
Addition (Note 8) WE (HhiEs) 7,782 50,758
Fair value gains A FAE BT 160,008 191,330
Exchange difference [E B, 2% % (115,147) (85,579)
At 31 March W=H=+—H 1,881,563 1,828,920
The Group’s property interest held under operating lease to earn rental IR S AR % 268 AR e D W BDURHL 4 Wi
income or for capital appreciation is measured using the fair value AN A B 2 Y 36 R 2 TR AT
model. {E RG] & -
As at 31 March 2017, the Group has no unprovided contractual R oZ—LBEZA=Z+—H > REHE
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2016: Nil). M R ARKAEE R IR EZ R B E AT

E(ZF—NEH)-

Investment properties Relationship of
held by the Group in the Valuation Significant ~ unobservable
consolidated statement of Fair value technique(s) and unobservable inputs for Amount
financial position hierarchy key input(s) input(s) fair value Sensitivity HKS$’000
ik 2T B
SR TBR U FE W AUBW BN &H
R M S VRS S YELL N BAZY  BYZHE Bk T#x
Property in Yingkou (located Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square  The higher the  The fair value 95,033
at Zhuoyue Building, meter of the  price per square would be
Kunlun Main Street West, The key input is: comparable meter, the higher ~ HK$4,200,000
Bayuquan District, Yingkou properties and the fair value higher if the
City, Liaoning Province, the 1. Price per square meter adjust to reflect price per
People’s Republic of China) the conditions square meter is
and locations increased by 5%
of the subject from the input
properties used by the
valuer
BHHHE (R HEARL H=4 HikL B3 WEmEZ  BTHREE  MET R 95,033
il 2 7 e O BPIORERE . MR AR RBRAGE AR
RN LV IGN ) FEGAEYS: A 2 DA W RZEA%
JUSR LIFS Wk Tts%
L 8Pk MR R A E AT REH
4,200,0009 76

EERKEEFR QA
2016/2017 F# ]-3 ]-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

16 LLEWE (4)

Investment properties Relationship of
held by the Group in the Valuation Significant ~ unobservable
consolidated statement of Fair value technique(s) and unobservable inputs for Amount
financial position hierarchy key input(s) input(s) fair value Sensitivity HKS$’000
EX AT
SEMBR RN AW AT B A &%
AR5 W 45 4% ¥ 3k PR CES Y ER T N 1 WAZY  ZBZHR B T
Property in Zhongshan (located ~ Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square  The higher the  The fair value 1,728,900
at Daxing Hao Yuan, No. 69 meter of the  price per square would be
Zhongshan Third Road, East The key input is: comparable meter, the higher  HK$76,000,000
District, Zhongshan City, properties and the fair value higher if the
Guangdong Province, the 1. Price per square meter adjust to reflect price per
People’s Republic of China) the conditions square meter is
and locations increased by 5%
of the subject from the input
properties used by the
valuer
ik (AR EARSE B8 HELBY MkBWEZ  BPRER  WETIORE 1,728,900
B B RA8  LL i OR L L BPTOREM > B AT MBI
= HoouHE B FEBARYS S AF: 2 o ZEAR
SR LIS Wb Tts%-
L 8Pk R i AFHIER I
76,000,0003 ¢
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16 &EM¥E ()

Investment properties Relationship of
held by the Group in the Valuation Significant ~ unobservable
consolidated statement of Fair value technique(s) and unobservable inputs for Amount
financial position hierarchy key input(s) input(s) fair value Sensitivity HKS$’000
iX A VR
SE MBI AW ATEW R B A &%
AR5 W 45 4% ¥ 3k PR CES L ER T N 1 WAZY  BUZHE B T
Property in Jinggangshan Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square  The higher the  The fair value 57,630
(located at No. 1 Lan Hua meter of the  price per square would be
Ping Road, Ciping Town, The key inputs are: comparable meter, the higher  HK$3,000,000
Jinggangshan City, Jian City, properties and the fair value higher if the
Jiangxi Province, the People’s 1. Price per square meter adjust to reflect price per
Republic of China) the conditions square meter is
2. Construction cost estimate and locations increased by 5%
of the subject from the input
properties used by the

valuer

Construction  The higher the  The fair value

cost estimate  construction cost would be
based on estimate, the  HK$1,000,000
management's  lower the fair lower if the
budget value construction

cost estimate is

increased by 5%
from the input
used by the
valuer
FELTE (R EAR F=4 HELBY MkBMEZ  BEHkER  METIRE 57,630
FMBRLP A # LW BEOREM  BRATE  HBA R
T Y SP STAE S5 1 %) FEBAZYS S AF: 3 2 aE MZEA%
SR LIS ¥ b Tks%
L PR Z ARV R A B AR
3,000,000 75
2 MR A EWEHER  EERA RN
Rt M- AVMEE KB HE
A K AZWAZ
B b Tts%
AFEERS

1,000,003 7

EERKEEFR QA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16 &M (4)

The Group has measured the deferred tax relating to the temporary
differences of these investment properties using the tax rates and the
tax bases that are consistent with the expected manner of recovery of

these investment properties.

The fair value measurement information for the investment properties

in accordance with HKFRS 13 as at 31 March 2017 is set out below.

Level 3 fair values of investment properties have been generally derived
using the sales comparison approach. Sales prices of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key
attributes such as property size. The most significant input into this
valuation approach is price per square meter and the construction cost

estimate.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

(a) Valuation basis

As at 31 March 2017, the fair values of the investment properties
located in cities of Zhongshan, Yingkou and Jinggangshan have
been arrived on the basis of valuation carried out on that date by
independent qualified professional valuers not connected to the
Group. The valuation of Zhongshan and Yingkou was arrived at
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties at similar location. The valuation of Jinggangshan was
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices
for similar properties at similar location less the construction cost

estimate.

(b) Leasing arrangements

Investment properties located in Yingkou, PRC are leased to
tenants under long-term operating leases with rentals payable
monthly. Investment properties located in cities of Zhongshan
and Jinggangshan were under refurbishment as at 31 March

2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()
For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

17 B 2 ]
PFRAIR — R LA —H

17 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2017.

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities and

B2y AR

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered capital

Proportion of
ordinary shares

Name kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities  held by the Group (%)
AR, 3 B CEATIBA /A R AHH
4 Tt AR R ERE3 Y3 311 BT A B R T (%)
Crown Global Opportunity Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 1,000,000 ordinary shares of *100%
Investment Limited i P 7 T8 PR B M USS$1 each
EEEREIREARAF Limited liability company 1,000,000/ 4 it i {f
HIRAR 1R 782 m I
Crown International Investment Corp. Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 1,000,000 ordinary shares of *100%
i P T P B US$1 cach
Limited liability company 1,000,000/t %5 ¢ 1 {0
HIRAR 1R 782 B m
Crown Entertainment Corporation Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 1,000,000 ordinary shares of *100%
SRR A AT L 3 A 8 4 US$1 each
Limited liability company 1,000,000/ 45 1t i {
HIAR 10z Bl
Crown Finance Holdings Limited Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 1,000 ordinary shares of *100%
S R A A R i P A i P i 4 M US$1 each
Limited liability company 1,000
AT B A 158 50 2 3 A M
Crown Tianhe Resources Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
SR RA WA i ER R 10,0003 7¢
Limited liability company
HIRAH
World Opal Investment Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
HREEHRAR Hil T 7 B 7 1 M 10,0003 7%
Limited liability company
HIRAF
Crown Land Corp. Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
SRR A BT i TE T W B 2 1 M 10,000% 7
Limited liability company
HIRAR
Zhongshan Hualian Industrial PRC Property investment in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Development Corporation Limited Ll il ki3 ¢k HK$50,000,000
o oLy T 3 S PR A LA W) 2 Wholly owned FEAHE 750,000,000% 78
foreign enterprise
OhiE B
Crown International Resort Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
FRIBEEARA R i TERF R T M 10,0009 76
Limited liability company
HIRAR

EERKEEFR QA
2016/2017 F#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

17 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17 B 2 W) (4)
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued Proportion of
establishment and Principal activities and share capital/registered capital ordinary shares
Name kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities  held by the Group (%)
AR B,/ B CRATIAR /R Y AR KHH
Hi Tk AR R ERES Y3 3 0 B -2 BRI R L (%)
3 A AT WA ) PRC Provision of Registered capital of 100%
H financial advisory service in PRC RMB10,000,000
Limited liability company R B 9 B D A A A R 10,000,0007C
HIRAR
T L Sl 0 5 o AT A PRC Dormant Registered capital of 91.5%
i LEE RMB13,000,000
Limited liability company Ak AR A R 13,000,000
HIRAT
“U” Inns (Yingkou) Hotel Management PRC Property investment in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Corporation Limited. 2 il R B EE HK$25,600,000
TRIZAS (8 1) 0 05 45 AT L2 ) © Wholly owned A% A25,600,0009 7C
foreign enterprise
Bh
“U” Inns & Hotel (Jing Gang Shan Shi) PRC Hotel investment in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Limited & i A B R RMBS50,000,000
TREE BTG (FFR L) F AR Wholly owned A AN R 50,000,00058
foreign enterprise
Sh
* Shares held directly by the Company. * JBe By A A Bl HAR R A o
% These companies do not have English names. These are only translation of S AT I o MR SRR
their Chinese names. Ko amz -
18 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 18 A fk i 8 B 5 &
ASSETS
2017 2016
e A
HK$’000 HK$000
T# 5t T#T
At 1 April BMUH—H 1,128 1,128
Exchange difference [ 58, 72 48 13 S
Impairment loss charged to consolidated statement 11 [ B #% F 2 H N R Z
of comprehensive income (Note 6) WA R (B 3E6) (441) =
At 31 March B=E=A=+—H 700 1,128

136 Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2016/2017



18

19

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 18
ASSETS (Continued)

Note:

Available-for-sale financial assets represent unlisted club debentures of golf clubs

which are denominated in RMB.

The fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets is determined with the use
of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. The available-for-sale financial assets are not exposed

to credit risk.

Al I R (A1)

B i+

] {3k L I A TRk 2 Ik By
Pz - DN R EHE -

AT 3k L A I A 2 T AR AT 2 T
By () HOE - S A IO I
TS AR o TG T B N AR 2 A B
Jo i o

GOODWILL 19 H#
2017 2016
S Sl o R VAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T#o0

At 1 April RHA—H

Cost B AR - 65,240
Additions (Note a) WE (MfFka) - 256
Accumulated impairment loss (Note a, b) B (fska-b) - (65,496)
At 31 March R=H=Z+—H - -

EERKEEFR QA
2016/2017 F# ]-37



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

19 GOODWILL (Continued)

Note:

(@)

138

The addition for the year ended 31 March 2016 arose from the
acquisition of a subsidiary with net liability of approximately
HK$244,000 for a consideration of HK$12,000. The amount was

subsequently impaired.

Goodwill mainly arose from the acquisition of Zhongshan Hualian
Industrial Development Corporation Limited (“Zhongshan Hualian”)
in March 2015, relating to the knowledge of the property market in
Zhongshan, the PRC (“Zhongshan”) and the connection with a potential
tenant who was interested in renting all four storeys of the Group’s
investment property in Zhongshan (“Rental Property”) to operate a

department store.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, having performed further research
and evaluation on the property market in Zhongshan, the management
finalised its plan for the Zhongshan property and decided to segregate
the Rental Property for the purpose of renting to multiple tenants, with
a particular focus on companies in the financial sector and with a view to
package the Zhongshan property into a luxurious serviced apartment with
the 4-storey shopping mall areas being developed into a financial services
themed centre featuring banks, securities companies, financiers and asset

management companies.

As a result of the change in the development plan in early 2016, it was
concluded by the management that the Connection to a single tenant
for all four storeys of retail space (together with car parking space) of the
Zhongshan property is no longer considered to be more favourable in
terms of economic returns, compared with leasing the Rental Property
to multiple individual tenants. The management therefore decided
not to lease the Rental Property to Tenant A. The recoverable amount
of the property investment segment in Zhongshan (being the cash-
generating unit to which the relevant goodwill was allocated) was mainly
represented by the carrying amount of investment property that has been
recognised at fair value as at 31 March 2016. Because of such reason,
and given the management’s decision made in early 2016 in relation
to the development plan, the management believed that the recorded
goodwill no longer represented an asset that would derive future benefits
to the Group. Accordingly, a full impairment amounted to approximately
HK$65,240,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok W 5 AR W (7))

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFESE

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES

20 B % MWk IR

2017 2016

—E—LHE ZE—AH

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T o0

Trade receivables B 5 HE Wk ] 8,475 -

As at 31 March 2017, trade receivables of HK$8,475,000 (2016: Nil)
with credit terms of 30 days are past due but not impaired. This related
to an independent customer for whom there is no significant financial
difficulty. The ageing analysis by past due date of trade receivables is as

follows:

WoZ—EEZA=1+—H 8,475,000
WL (ZF— 4 E) ~EEW %30H
Z & T W WOk TE 20 08 R Dk A - B
HRMBGHEZ B L E AN 85 E
WK T e T A A TR 43 b
T

2017 2016
—2—tE —FAF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THT
Past due but not impaired: 8 390 4H AR Yk A -
61 — 90 days past due mAs+—=NTH 8,475 S

The carrying amount of trade receivables is denominated in RMB. The

balance is fully settled in May 2017.

S 5 W WSOk SR R T B DA N RIS R < A
AR TR T —LELA 2 -

EERKEEFR QA
2016/2017 F# 139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

21 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS

AND DEPOSITS

21 Ffth ek 3 ~ TR AT K IH K
% &

2017 2016

=2 L —ZFAE

HK$’000 HK$’000

F# T

Loan receivable (Note) JRE W Bk (BRFRE) — 46,440
Other receivables F At W Wtk JE 375 379
Prepayments and deposits FE A AR K % 4 3,155 2,996
3,530 49,815

Note:

The loan receivable at 31 March 2016 was unsecured, with interest bearing at

9% per annum and repayable on 19 May 2016. Such loan receivable was fully

settled on 16 May 2016.

The carrying amounts of other receivables and deposits approximate their fair

values and are denominated in the following currencies:

W :

RERAREZH =4 HZ RE R 5
TR - AR A RO BB KR R — N
HAJu R ZU0E R < A B Sk et %
SNSRI N B A

St JRE VAR T e 5 4 2 R T L SR A S i
A M DU B £ R R

2017 2016

—E L ZEF-AHF

HK$’000 HK$°000

Tt TF#on

HK$ ot 1,639 1,612
RMB N 1,891 48,203
3,530 49,815
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFELE

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 Blae kB eEHY

2017 2016

NS S o R AN S

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T o0

Bank balances SRAT B R 85,285 74,547
Cash on hand FHBl & 4 16
85,289 74,563

B4 M B 4 S B 2 MR i i B2 8 P A

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate

their fair values and are denominated in the following currencies: F WA A EHE
2017 2016
e
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T-#o0
HKS$ Wt 3,082 11,517
RMB AR 81,734 62,573
United States dollars Xt 473 473
85,289 74,563

W —-tE#=A=Z+—H>
#181,732,000 70 ( =& — N 4 :
62,558,000%s J0) Z Bl 4 K Bl & FEHW
1Nt o 1 Al e e s
HAr NRWAFAERBET S LB b

As at 31 March 2017, cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$81,732,000 (2016: HK$62,558,000) respectively are denominated
in RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency in the international market. The conversion of

RMB into foreign currencies and remittance of RMB out of the PRC

is subject to the rules and regulations of exchange control promulgated e o N B S 40K AN W RO N R B
by the government of the PRC. H e I8 7 A2 v I8 B AR A 2 A IR A AR
R e B e A L

EERKEEFR QA
2016/2017 F# ]-4 ]-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

23 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

23 L fiby JE A5F sk JH M W H £ AR

2017 2016
—F—tF ZF-AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Filse Fil
Non-current J B 1
Consideration payable — non-current portion JE A ARABT — i B 91 95 4
(Note a) (FiEa) 198,906 194,587
Other payables — non-current portion (Note b) Al JRE A 7 3 — BV 4
(FEb ) 157,334 163,453
|02 SR
Current B
Property acquisition cost payable & Ak 4y 3 WA B R A 991 1,051
Commission payable in respect of H A T A 2 A A
disposals of hotel properties - 5,492
Consideration payable JE A AR BT — B30T 3 43
— current portion (Note a) (P 5Ea) 12,200 12,200
Accrued construction cost JE T 2 B AR 7,278 =
Accrued directors’ fee JEGH#E F L 4,241 1,956
Accrued audit fee JRE T A% S 1,250 1,150
Salary payable JRE A 37 4 1,941 388
Other payables — current portion (Note b) Al JE ASF sk JE — BV 56 4
(K &ED) 402 1,369
Accrued legal and professional fee FE ST R B 80 962
Others HoAth 22037772 3,044
| . S
386,895 385,652

Note a:

Amount represented consideration payable in relation to the acquisition of
the entire equity interest of Zhongshan Hualian Industrial Development
Corporation Limited. The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

according to the agreed payment terms.
Note b:

Amount represented payable to Sino Oasis in relation to construction service
fees paid on behalf of Zhongshan Hualian Industrial Development Corporation
Limited by Sino Oasis. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable

according to the agreed payment terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFELE

23 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2017, for the non-current portion of consideration payable and
other payable, Sino Oasis agreed with the Group that they will not request the
Group for repayment of the non-current portion of consideration payable and

other payable on or before 30 June 2018.

The carrying amounts of the other payables and accruals approximate their fair

23

- fihy B A5 3k Y B M £ A
(%)

REF—EHE=ZA=1T—H > AR &
JLAth WA 35K JE =2 I BV IIEB 43 1 & > Sino Oasis
T BLAS 4 [ 17 58 - A8 S5 S 1 R A 4 1
&R )N H = H sl i AR
T At WA K T 2 S BI04 o

Al JRE A 5 ST e B A MR T B T

values and are denominated in the following currencies: FHE - 36 DL F 51 4 W ST -

2017 2016
e e

HK$’000 HK$000
R THT
HK$ #o 218,924 217,072
RMB NG 167,971 168,580
386,895 385,652

24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to

settle the balances on a net basis. The offset amounts are as follows:

24

3 S e 15 B E B

A R AT AT RE R T B OB R
S AP 390 0 A AR FR Y T T
o 5 7 B i B — R A )
JE R B T e 2 ] — T A4 B P M 2 e
B B > A B3R A A A S R
IR > B 1 28 28 BT 450 4 A S R AR LA
HRE o WM T

2017 2016

2tk —TaE

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt FH#oT

Deferred income tax assets B AL Fr 19 B0 A - =
Deferred income tax liabilities AR S i 4 50 £ A (379,859) (363,289)
(379,859) (363,289)

EERFEEFR AR
2016/2017 F#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND 24 W& HE P 5P E A A

LIABILITIES (Continued)

The components of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year ended 31 March 2017 are as follows:

(%)

REREZR-ELHE=EH=1—HILE
JBE > A A b 5 IR 0 A TN e R TR A O A
Beg i, (B By BT :

Fair value
Accelerated change of
depreciation investment
allowances Tax losses  properties Total
i B"EME
A BEHEBEER APHEED R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T Twt T T
At 1 April 2016 BT ANFEMNH—H = = (363,289)  (363,289)
(Charged)/credited to the (f1BxA) wtA
consolidated statement meamiasg
of comprehensive income - - (39,767) (39,767)
Exchange difference FEE e, % A - - 23,197 23,197
At 31 March 2017 R-F—-LH#=ZA=+—H - - (379,859)  (379,859)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A W B Wk MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFELE

24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND 24 WEE P 5P E A M A

LIABILITIES (Continued)

The components of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year ended 31 March 2016 are as follows:

(#1)
RRE-R—AEZH =+ —H Ik
FiE 55 BB R L P 2 A A A0
BLREAE (B0 Bty B B F -

Fair value
Accelerated change of
depreciation investment
allowances Tax losses properties Total
Jin 4 wEY %
TR BEEBER ATVEEH Fi
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AR RPN Fuso0 TF#oo
At 1 April 2015 W_R—HFMA—H ) 2 (331,164) (331,164)
Credited/(charged) to the SIS (kR E)
consolidated statement of AR A AT IR 2R R
comprehensive income 2 2) (49,305) (49,305)
Exchange difference [ 58, 7% HH = = 17,180 17,180
At 31 March 2016 R_R—ANFE=ZH=4—H — - (363,289) (363,289)
Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are as follows: RERZ BB BEENT
2017 2016
e S o R AT S
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T-#o0
Unutilised tax losses A8 2 BlIE & 8B 36,652 32,670
Accelerated depreciation allowances Jin 2 BT #  Afg 46 13
36,698 32,683

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, all deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities are recoverable after more than 12 months.

Ro-F—EERF-AFE=ZA=1—
H -~ B A 90 22 36 Y5 s J 0 B 5 0 4 R
A A - A H AR W e o

EERKEEFR QA
2016/2017 F# 145



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND

25

LIABILITIES (Continued)

At 31 March 2017, the deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of
approximately HK$217,136,000 (31 March 2016: HK$195,884,000)
have not been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams to utilised such losses. Unrecognised tax losses amounted to
HK$207,431,000 (31 March 2016: HK$185,551,000) has no expiry
date and certain unrecognised tax losses amounted to HK$9,705,000
(31 March 2016: HK$10,333,000) expire within five years under the

current tax legislation of the respective jurisdictions.

24 W& E e 15 B B E B AR

(%)

RoF—LE=ZHA=Z1+—H -BEHE
H#1217,136,0008 78 (ZF— N FE=
H=+—H:195,884,000% c) & H
1% W B F A B S 4E = iR A 2 IR W B
T - W G AR T R A A T o MR BR
B i) 2 RE T B AT B B R HE R
i 38 5 15207,431,0008 00 ( =& — N
E£=ZH=1—H:185,551,000 5T ) I
I JeE O > i R HE OB IE s 4R
9,705,000 7T (ZF—ANE=ZH=1—
H :10,333,000% 70 ) RI i F048 ) ) 34 -

SHARE CAPITAL 25 A
Number of
shares Share capital
B ¥ H JE AL
HK$’000
Tt
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: O AT S S R E ik
At 1 April 2015 BRI —H 2,600,000,000 971,402
Proceeds from issuance of shares net of BEAT AR T A5 3k 0
transaction costs (Note a) (RS RA) (Mika) 260,000,000 337,722
At 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 RO AREZH=Z4—HE
“Z—tb#HE=H=1+—H 2,860,000,000 1,309,124

Note a:

On 23 October 2015, the Company issued and allotted 260,000,000 new
shares at HK$1.3 cach to a subscriber pursuant to a subscription agreement
entered into between the Company and the subscriber dated 7 October 2015.
The new shares rank equally among themselves and with the existing shares
in all respects. The transaction cost in relation to the issuance of new shares

amounted to approximately HK$278,000.
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26 COMMITMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFELE

(a) Lease commitments

(i)

Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the

lessor

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group had contracted

with tenants for the following minimum lease receivables:

26 RIE

(a) RIEARYE

(@)

AR AR — AL 75
HHNA

REZR-LERZE A
ZH=E+—H AL EM P
T A DL doe R AL 5 B K O

2017 2016

—ZF—EFE ZZ-AE

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T# 0

Not later than 1 year AR — 4 3,431 3,576
Later than 1 year and not later —4E D) FAH R A AR

than 5 years 12,270 14,703

Over five years 8 3 T4 889 2,915

16,590 21,194

Operating lease receivables represent future aggregate
minimum lease receipts by the Group from non-cancellable
operating leases of its investment properties. Typically, leases
are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease term of eight to

ten years.

A8 ML WO AR AR 4R
P A L 2 B 3 2 A T L
B A8 AL MO 2 R A R R
B AR AR o — M > AL A
WE R e > 1 )\AF 2= 4R AL
ZHETHEE-

EERKEEFR QA
2016/2017 F# ]-47



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 3 0 5 e MRk (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

26 COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(a) Lease commitments (Continued)
(ii)  Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the
lessee

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group had commitments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented

premises, which fall due as follows:

26 & ¥E (#)
(a) PIEE AW (4)

(ii)

AR AR — AL 7%
AN

PR -LERIZE A
ZA=ZE+—H - AREEREAR
T 3t o AL A B R IR DL AR

B2 2 FLE W 36 2 AR
T
2017 2016
B bE SR AE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# 0 T
Not later than 1 year AR — A 6,161 6,367
Later than 1 year and not later —4E DL FAH R A AR
than 5 years - 6,043
6,161 12,410
(b) Capital commitments (b) EARKIKE

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has no outstanding
commitment (2016: HK$Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFELE

27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 BB TSR B
The following transactions were carried out with related parties during A PR BRI W 7 HEAT 2 BB E o
the year.
Key management compensation 32 2248 PH O il A
Key management includes directors and senior management. The B I g A G o R AR B o
compensation paid or payable to key management for employee R E R BS LAk s M Ao o A B g 2 il
services is shown below: BIRF
2017 2016
e e L
HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 T
Directors’ fee HHA A 5,120 2,465
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits Wt 4 B At e 3 8 B 600 600
Pension costs — MPF IRAR A AR — o ) A A 4 18 11
5,738 3,076
28 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 28 e WI4% 9508
PERIOD
On 7 June 2017, the Group entered into a lease agreement with BB -EHEANALH  REHE—H
an independent third party for the lease of the Group’s investment A = AN T RV i NS
property in Jinggangshan for 10 years. A A7 7 B 1Ly 2 4 3 R A

EERKEEFR QA
2016/2017 F# ]-49



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # £ —F— L =H=—+—H I FF

29 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 29 AL ]2 BRI 3R KR

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

I 1 52 0y

COMPANY
2017 2016
2L ZE-AHF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 T Tt
ASSETS e
Non-current assets I B B
Property, plant and equipment W3~ W B vk A - 2
Investments in subsidiaries B A R 2 7,833 7,750
7,833 7,752
Current assets i B
Other receivables, S Al WK T~ FE A K OE
prepayments and deposits 4% 4 315 265
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE WL B Jeg A ] K JE 581,958 600,982
Cash and cash equivalents B4 KBl & %5 EY 517 10,238
582,790 611,485
Total assets s 5_ 9_0_,6_2_3_ ______ 6_1_9_,%3_7_ B
EQUITY HE 45
Capital and reserves & A I it s
Share capital JBE A 1,309,124 1,309,124
Accumulated losses ZEM B8 (a) (739,950) (709,755)
Total equity WeermO® 569,174 599,369
Current liabilities i B £
Other payables and accruals L fth JE A5 35K JE B HE T AL A 5,871 4,368
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A B )i 2 ] ek JE 15,578 15,500
Total liabilities Afges 21,449 19,868
Total equity and liabilities HE 25 K £ fei A 590,623 619,237

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of

Directors on 30 June 2017 and was signed on its behalf

Mr. MENG Jin Long

ARAFRZHEEAMRKEFTR R
—EEANAZT A T AL

REEFTRSE

Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon

4 A B 5 A
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
FR 178 3 %

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A B R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # E —F—-LHE=H=—+—HIFFELE

29 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 29 AR w22 BRI &

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE ffE 58 (4)
COMPANY (Continued)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) A2 W22 il i 5 B
Accumulated
losses
BitisE
HK$’000
T-#I0
At 1 April 2015 RoR—HAENA—H (514,757)
Loss for the year 4 i 18 (194,998)
At 31 March 2016 W _E—ANFE=H=1—H (709,755)
Loss for the year A i 1R (30,195)
At 31 March 2017 W _F—LtHE=H=1—H (739,950)

EERKEEFR QA
2016/2017 F# ]- 5]-



Financial Summary

i 25 ik 22

The following is a summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the A A ) 5 3 A B B TR 2 A S A M e
last five financial periods. mEe

1/4/2012 to 1/4/2013 to 1/4/2014 to 1/4/2015 to 1/4/2016 to
31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2015 31/3/2016 31/3/2017
1/4/2012% 1/4/2013% 1/4/2014% 1/4/2015% 1/4/2016%
31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2015 31/3/2016 31/3/2017

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$’000

Foo Floo T Tl T

Revenue W 25 6,627 5,981 3,632 3,514 12,024
(Loss)/profit before income tax B B 75 B i

(lE#R) /Al (67,355) (39,459) 161,209 218,764 123,300

Income tax expense e 15 A B 3% (5,172) (1,292) (6,415) (46,498) (41,960)

(Loss)/profit for the year N (BR) /A (72,527) (40,751) 154,794 172,266 81,340

The following is a summary of the total assets and liabilities of the Group as AEEP =4 R -NECF
at 31 March 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017. —hE-ZF-ANERF-LEZA
E=t—HZ AR A FARRAR T -

31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2015 31/3/2016 31/3/2017

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$’000 HK$’000

Fioo Fikoo Fiioo F oo T

Total assets Vo9 N 581,425 501,198 2,400,427 1,962,452 1,984,419
Total liabilicies FEAEH (576,282) (540,891) (1,634,330) (748,941) (768,836)
Total equity/(deficit) M,/ (Al ) 4 5,143 (39,693) 766,097 1,213,511 1,215,583
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